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PART I - FINANCIAL INFORMATION
Item 1. Financial Statements
PRESSURE BIOSCIENCES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(UNAUDITED)
March 31, 2017

December 31, 2016

ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable, net of $28,169 reserve at March 31, 2017 and December 31, 2016
Inventories, net of $20,000 reserve at March 31, 2017 and December 31, 2016
Prepaid income taxes
Prepaid expenses and other current assets
Total current assets
Investment in available-for-sale equity securities
Property and equipment, net
TOTAL ASSETS
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ DEFICIT
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Accrued employee compensation
Accrued professional fees and other
Deferred revenue
Revolving note payable, net of unamortized debt discounts of $839,969 and $637,030,
respectively
Related party convertible debt, net of debt discount of $132,522 and $0, respectively
Convertible debt, net of unamortized debt discounts of $1,987,382 and $2,235,839,
respectively
Other debt, net of unamortized discounts of $167,263 and $380, respectively
Warrant derivative liability
Conversion option liability
Total current liabilities
LONG TERM LIABILITIES
Related party convertible debt, net of debt discount of $0 and $165,611, respectively
Convertible debt, net of debt discount of $5,575and $740,628, respectively
Deferred revenue
TOTAL LIABILITIES
COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (Note 5)
STOCKHOLDERS’ DEFICIT
Series D Convertible Preferred Stock, $.01 par value; 850 shares authorized; 300 shares
issued and outstanding on March 31, 2017 and December 31, 2016, respectively
(Liquidation value of $300,000)
Series G Convertible Preferred Stock, $.01 par value; 240,000 shares authorized;
86,570 shares issued and outstanding on March 31, 2017 and December 31, 2016,
respectively
Series H Convertible Preferred Stock, $.01 par value; 10,000 shares authorized; 10,000
shares issued and outstanding on March 31, 2017 and December 31, 2016, respectively
Series H2 Convertible Preferred Stock, $.01 par value; 21 shares authorized; 21 shares
issued and outstanding on March 31, 2017 and December 31, 2016, respectively
Series J Convertible Preferred Stock, $.01 par value; 6,250 shares authorized; 3,521
shares issued and outstanding on March 31, 2017 and December 31, 2016, respectively
Series K Convertible Preferred Stock, $.01 par value; 15,000 shares authorized; 6,816
shares issued and outstanding on March 31, 2017 and December 31, 2016, respectively
Common stock, $.01 par value; 100,000,000 shares authorized; 31,809,839 and
30,999,839 shares issued and outstanding on March 31, 2017 and December 31, 2016,
respectively
Warrants to acquire common stock
Additional paid-in capital
Accumulated deficit
Total stockholders’ deficit
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ DEFICIT

$

$

$

$

121,438
518,727
940,383
7,405
207,745
1,795,698
19,796
22,571
1,838,065

$

672,729
250,039
990,425
145,918

$

$

407,249
249,596
956,884
159,654

1,410,031
158,612

612,970
-

5,213,529
683,116
3,018,515
2,679,404
15,222,318

4,005,702
238,157
1,685,108
951,059
9,266,379

5,425
74,805
15,302,548

125,523
529,742
87,527
10,009,171

3

3

866

866

100

100

-

-

35

35

68

68

318,098
6,628,580
27,446,472
(47,858,705)
(13,464,483)
1,838,065

$

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these unaudited consolidated financial statements
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138,363
281,320
905,284
7,405
258,103
1,590,475
25,865
9,413
1,625,753

309,998
6,325,102
27,244,600
(42,264,190)
(8,383,418)
1,625,753

PRESSURE BIOSCIENCES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
(UNAUDITED)
For the Three Months Ended
March 31,
2017
2016
Revenue:
Products, services, other
Grant revenue
Total revenue

$

Costs and expenses:
Cost of products and services
Research and development
Selling and marketing
General and administrative
Total operating costs and expenses

525,998
25,359
551,357

$

235,997
263,456
213,009
837,998
1,550,460

Operating loss

454,350
56,128
510,478
221,699
335,270
191,236
808,218
1,556,423

(999,103)

(1,045,945)

Other (expense) income:
Interest expense, net
Other expense
Impairment loss on investment
Change in fair value of derivative liabilities
Total other (expense) income

(1,526,632)
(959)
(6,069)
(3,061,752)
(4,595,412)

(835,144)
(912)
(4,068,390)
(4,904,446)

Net loss

(5,594,515)

(5,950,391)

Net loss per common share - basic and diluted

$

Weighted average common stock shares outstanding – basic and diluted

(0.18)
31,223,061

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these unaudited consolidated financial statements
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$

(0.26)
23,198,360

PRESSURE BIOSCIENCES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE LOSS
(UNAUDITED)
For the Three Months Ended
March 31,
2017
2016
Comprehensive Loss
Net loss

$

(5,594,515)

Other comprehensive loss
Unrealized loss on marketable securities

$

(139,698)

-

Comprehensive loss

$

(5,594,515)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these unaudited consolidated financial statements
5

(5,950,391)

$

(6,090,089)

PRESSURE BIOSCIENCES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(UNAUDITED)
For the Three Months Ended
March 31,
2017
2016
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Net loss
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash used in operating activities:
Common stock issued for debt extension
Depreciation and amortization
Accretion of interest and amortization of debt discount
Gain on settlement of debt
Stock-based compensation expense
Warrants issued for services
Impairment loss on investment
Change in fair value of derivative liabilities
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable
Inventories
Prepaid expenses and other assets
Accounts payable
Accrued employee compensation
Deferred revenue and other accrued expenses
Net cash used in operating activities

$

(5,594,515)

$

(5,950,391)

10,000
2,450
1,307,889
74,529
15,558
6,069
3,061,752

6,198
839,234
(5,044)
101,462
105,200
4,068,390

(237,407)
(35,099)
50,358
265,480
443
(92,917)
(1,165,410)

(280,655)
71,822
43,303
(161,253)
38,110
(109,834)
(1,233,458)

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Purchases of property plant and equipment
Net cash used in investing activities

(15,608)
(15,608)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Net proceeds from related party convertible debt
Net proceeds from revolving note payable
Net proceeds from convertible debt
Payments on convertible debt
Net proceeds from non-convertible debt
Payments on non-convertible debt
Net cash provided by financing activities
NET DECREASE IN CASH
CASH AT BEGINNING OF YEAR
CASH AT END OF PERIOD
SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION
Interest paid in cash
NON CASH TRANSACTIONS:
Discount due to warrants issued with debt
Unrealized loss from available-for-sale equity securities
Debt discount from derivative liability
Convertible debt held in escrow
Common stock issued with debt
Discount from one-time interest

920,000
(300,000)
773,000
(228,907)
1,164,093

96,667
1,025,500
256,660
(168,765)
1,210,062

$

(16,925)
138,363
121,438

$

(23,396)
116,783
93,387

$

62,802

$

287,920
125,443
100,000

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these unaudited consolidated financial statements
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-

1,154
139,698
1,294,049
166,882
-

PRESSURE BIOSCIENCES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS MARCH 31, 2016
(UNAUDITED)
1) Business Overview, Liquidity and Management Plans
Pressure Biosciences, Inc. (“we”, “our”, “the Company”) is focused on solving the challenging problems inherent in biological sample
preparation, a crucial laboratory step performed by scientists worldwide working in biological life sciences research. Sample preparation is
a term that refers to a wide range of activities that precede most forms of scientific analysis. Sample preparation is often complex, timeconsuming, and in our belief, one of the most error-prone steps of scientific research. It is a widely-used laboratory undertaking, the
requirements of which drive what we believe is a large and growing worldwide market. We have developed and patented a novel, enabling
technology platform that can control the sample preparation process. It is based on harnessing the unique properties of high hydrostatic
pressure. This process, called pressure cycling technology, or PCT, uses alternating cycles of hydrostatic pressure between ambient and
ultra-high levels (35,000 psi or greater) to safely, conveniently and reproducibly control the actions of molecules in biological samples,
such as cells and tissues from human, animal, plant, and microbial sources.
Our pressure cycling technology uses internally developed instrumentation that is capable of cycling pressure between ambient and
ultra-high levels - at controlled temperatures and specific time intervals - to rapidly and repeatedly control the interactions of bio-molecules,
such as DNA, RNA, proteins, lipids, and small molecules. Our laboratory instrument, the Barocycler®®, and our internally developed
consumables product line, including PULSE® (Pressure Used to Lyse Samples for Extraction) Tubes, other processing tubes, and
application specific kits (which include consumable products and reagents) together make up our PCT Sample Preparation System, or PCT
SPS.
In 2015, together with an investment bank, we formed a subsidiary called Pressure BioSciences Europe (“PBI Europe”) in Poland. We
have 49% ownership interest with the investment bank retaining 51%. As of now, PBI Europe does not have any operating activities and
we cannot reasonably predict when operations will commence. Therefore, we do not have control of the subsidiary and did not consolidate
in our financial statements. PBI Europe did not have any operations in the first quarter of 2017 or in fiscal year 2016.
2) Going Concern
The accompanying financial statements have been prepared assuming that the Company will continue as a going concern, which
contemplates the realization of assets and the liquidation of liabilities in the normal course of business. However, we have experienced
negative cash flows from operations with respect to our pressure cycling technology business since our inception. As of March 31, 2017,
we do not have adequate working capital resources to satisfy our current liabilities and as a result, there is substantial doubt regarding our
ability to continue as a going concern. We have been successful in raising cash through debt and equity offerings in the past and as
described in Note 6, we received $1,840,750 in gross proceeds from loans in the first quarter of 2017. We have financing efforts in place to
continue to raise cash through debt and equity offerings.
Management has developed a plan to continue operations. This plan includes obtaining equity or debt financing. During the three
months ended March 31, 2017 we received $1,840,750 net proceeds, in additional convertible and non-convertible debt. Although we have
successfully completed financings and reduced expenses in the past, we cannot assure you that our plans to address these matters in the
future will be successful.
We need substantial additional capital to fund normal operations in future periods. In the event that we are unable to obtain financing
on acceptable terms, or at all, we will likely be required to cease our operations, pursue a plan to sell our operating assets, or otherwise
modify our business strategy, which could materially harm our future business prospects. These financial statements do not include any
adjustments that might result from this uncertainty.
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3) Interim Financial Reporting
The accompanying unaudited consolidated balance sheet as of December 31, 2016, which was derived from audited financial
statements, and the unaudited interim consolidated financial statements of Pressure BioSciences, Inc. have been prepared in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (“generally accepted accounting principles” or “GAAP”) for
interim financial information. Accordingly, they do not include all of the information and footnotes required by generally accepted
accounting principles for complete financial statements. In the opinion of management, all material adjustments (consisting of only normal
recurring adjustments) considered necessary for a fair presentation have been included. Operating results for the three months ended March
31, 2017 are not necessarily indicative of the results that may be expected for the year ending December 31, 2017. For further information,
refer to the audited consolidated financial statements and footnotes thereto included in the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K (the
“Form 10-K”) for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2016 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on March 22, 2017.
4) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Principles of Consolidation
The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Pressure BioSciences, Inc., and its wholly-owned subsidiary PBI BioSeq,
Inc. All intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.
Use of Estimates
To prepare our consolidated financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America, we are required to make significant estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses
during the reporting period. In addition, significant estimates were made in projecting future cash flows to quantify deferred tax assets, the
costs associated with fulfilling our warranty obligations for the instruments that we sell, and the estimates employed in our calculation of
fair value of stock options awarded and warrant derivative liability. We base our estimates on historical experience and on various other
assumptions that we believe to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis for making judgments about the
carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results could differ from the estimates and
assumptions used.
Concentrations
Credit Risk
Our financial instruments that potentially subject us to concentrations of credit risk consist primarily of cash, cash equivalents, and
trade receivables. We have cash investment policies which, among other things, limit investments to investment-grade securities. We
perform ongoing credit evaluations of our customers, and the risk with respect to trade receivables is further mitigated by the fact that many
of our customers are government institutions, large pharmaceutical and biotechnology companies, and academic laboratories.
The following table illustrates the level of concentration as a percentage of total revenues during the three months ended March 31,
2017 and 2016.

Top Five Customers
Federal Agencies

For the Three Months Ended
March 31,
2017
2016
61%
46%
5%
11%

The following table illustrates the level of concentration as a percentage of net accounts receivable balance as of March 31, 2017 and
December 31, 2016:
Top Five Customers
Federal Agencies

March 31, 2017
66%
1%

December, 31, 2016
82%
1%

Product Supply
CBM Industries (Taunton, MA) has recently become the manufacturer of the Barocycler® 2320EXT. CBM is ISO 13485:2003 and
9001:2008 Certified. CBM provides us with precision manufacturing services that include management support services to meet our
specific application and operational requirements. Among the services provided by CBM to us are:
●

CNC Machining

●

Contract Assembly & Kitting

●

Component and Subassembly Design

●

Inventory Management

●

ISO certification

At this time, we believe that outsourcing the manufacturing of our new Barocycler® 2320EXT to CBM is the most cost-effective
method for us to obtain ISO Certified, CE and CSA Marked instruments. CBM’s close proximity to our South Easton, MA facility is a
significant asset enabling interactions between our Engineering, R&D, and Manufacturing groups and their counterparts at CBM. CBM
was instrumental in helping PBI achieve CE Marking on our Barocycler 2320EXT, as announced on February 2, 2017.
Although we currently manufacture and assemble the Barozyme HT48, Barocycler® HUB440, the SHREDDER SG3, and most of our
consumables at our South Easton, MA facility, we plan to take advantage of the established relationship with CBM and transfer
manufacturing of the entire Barocycler® product line, future instrument, and other products to CBM.
The Barocycler® NEP3229, launched in 2008, and manufactured by the BIT Group, will be phased out over the next several years and
replaced by the new state-of-the-art Barocycler® HUB and Barozyme HT product lines.
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Investment in Available-For-Sale Equity Securities
As of March 31, 2017, we held 601,500 shares of common stock of Everest Investments Holdings S.A. (“Everest”), a Polish publicly
traded company listed on the Warsaw Stock Exchange. We account for this investment in accordance with ASC 320 “Investments — Debt
and Equity Securities” as securities available for sale. On March 31, 2017, our consolidated balance sheet reflected the fair value of our
investment in Everest to be $19,796, based on the closing price of Everest shares of $0.03 per share on that day. The carrying value of our
investment in Everest common stock held will change from period to period based on the closing price of the common stock of Everest as
of the balance sheet date. The change in market value since the receipt of stock was determined to be other than temporary and $6,069 was
recorded by us as an impairment loss in the first quarter of 2017.
Computation of Loss per Share
Basic loss per share is computed by dividing loss available to common shareholders by the weighted average number of common
shares outstanding. Diluted loss per share is computed by dividing loss available to common shareholders by the weighted average number
of common shares outstanding plus additional common shares that would have been outstanding if dilutive potential common shares had
been issued. For purposes of this calculation, convertible preferred stock, common stock dividends, and warrants and options to acquire
common stock, are all considered common stock equivalents in periods in which they have a dilutive effect and are excluded from this
calculation in periods in which these are anti-dilutive to our net loss.
The following table illustrates our computation of loss per share for the three months ended March 31, 2017 and 2016:
For the Three Months Ended
March 31,
2017
2016
Numerator:
Net loss

$

Denominator for basic and diluted loss per share:
Weighted average common stock shares outstanding

(5,594,515)

$

31,223,061

Loss per common share - basic and diluted

$
9

(0.18)

(5,950,391)
23,198,360

$

(0.26)

The following table presents securities that could potentially dilute basic loss per share in the future. For all periods presented, the
potentially dilutive securities were not included in the computation of diluted loss per share because these securities would have been antidilutive to our net loss. The Series D Convertible Preferred Stock, Series G Convertible Preferred Stock, Series H Convertible Preferred
Stock, Series J Convertible Preferred Stock and Series K Convertible Preferred Stock are presented below as if they were converted into
common shares according to the conversion terms.
For the Three Months Ended
March 31,
2017
2016
7,814,250
5,460,250
26,067,288
25,226,800
25,399,195
26,998,401

Stock options
Convertible debt
Common stock warrants
Convertible preferred stock:
Series D Convertible Preferred Stock
Series G Convertible Preferred Stock
Series H Convertible Preferred Stock
Series H2 Convertible Preferred Stock
Series J Convertible Preferred Stock
Series K Convertible Preferred Stock

750,000
865,700
1,000,000
2,100,000
3,521,000
6,816,000
74,333,433

750,000
865,700
1,000,000
2,100,000
3,546,000
11,416,000
77,363,151

Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation Expense
We maintain equity compensation plans under which incentive stock options and non-qualified stock options are granted to employees,
independent members of our Board of Directors and outside consultants. We recognize stock-based compensation expense over the
requisite service period using the Black-Scholes formula to estimate the fair value of the stock options on the date of grant.
Determining Fair Value of Stock Option Grants
Valuation and Amortization Method - The fair value of each option award is estimated on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes
pricing model based on certain assumptions. The estimated fair value of employee stock options is amortized to expense using the straightline method over the vesting period.
Expected Term - The Company uses the simplified calculation of expected life, as the Company does not currently have sufficient
historical exercise data on which to base an estimate of expected term. Using this method, the expected term is determined using the
average of the vesting period and the contractual life of the stock options granted.
Expected Volatility - Expected volatility is based on the Company’s historical stock volatility data over the expected term of the award.
Risk-Free Interest Rate - The Company bases the risk-free interest rate used in the Black-Scholes valuation method on the implied
yield currently available on U.S. Treasury zero-coupon issues with an equivalent remaining term.
Forfeitures - The Company records stock-based compensation expense only for those awards that are expected to vest. The Company
estimated a forfeiture rate of 5% for awards granted based on historical experience and future expectations of options vesting. The
Company used this historical rate as our assumption in calculating future stock-based compensation expense.
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The Company recognized stock-based compensation expense of $74,529 and $101,462 for the three months ended March 31, 2017 and
2016, respectively. The following table summarizes the effect of this stock-based compensation expense within each of the line items of
our costs and expenses within our Consolidated Statements of Operations:
For the Three Months Ended
March 31,
2017
2016
$
15,970
$
20,381
10,886
12,690
47,673
68,391
$
74,529
$
101,462

Research and development
Selling and marketing
General and administrative
Total stock-based compensation expense
Fair Value of Financial Instruments

Due to their short maturities, the carrying amounts for cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, accounts payable, and accrued
expenses approximate their fair value. Long-term liabilities are primarily related to convertible debentures and deferred revenue with
carrying values that approximate fair value.
Fair Value Measurements
The Company follows the guidance of FASB ASC Topic 820, “ Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures ” (“ASC 820”) as it related
to all financial assets and financial liabilities that are recognized or disclosed at fair value in the financial statements on a recurring basis.
The Company generally defines fair value as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date (exit price). The Company uses a three-tier fair value hierarchy, which
classifies the inputs used in measuring fair values. These tiers include: Level 1, defined as observable inputs such as quoted prices for
identical instruments in active markets; Level 2, defined as inputs other than quoted prices in active markets that are either directly or
indirectly observable; and Level 3, defined as unobservable inputs in which little or no market data exists, therefore requiring the Company
to develop its own assumptions.
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Financial assets and liabilities are classified in their entirety based on the lowest level of input that is significant to the fair value
measurement. The Company has determined that its financial assets are classified within Level 1 and its financial liabilities are currently
classified within Level 3 in the fair value hierarchy. The development of the unobservable inputs for Level 3 fair value measurements and
fair value calculations are the responsibility of the Company’s management.
The following tables set forth the Company’s financial assets and liabilities that were accounted for at fair value on a recurring basis as
of March 31, 2017:

Available-For-Sale Equity Securities
Total Financial Assets

Series D Preferred Stock Purchase Warrants
Warrants Issued with Convertible Debt
Conversion Option Derivative Liabilities
Total Derivatives

March 31, 2017
19,796
$
19,796

March 31, 2017
89,280
2,929,235
2,679,404
$
5,697,919

Fair value measurements at March 31, 2017 using:
Quoted
Significant
prices in
other
Significant
active
observable
unobservable
markets
inputs
inputs
(Level 1)
(Level 2)
(Level 3)
19,796
$
19,796
$
$
Quoted
prices in
active
markets
(Level 1)

Significant
other
observable
inputs
(Level 2)

$

-

$

-

$

Significant
unobservable
inputs
(Level 3)
$
89,280
2,929,235
2,679,404
$
5,697,919

The following table provides a summary of the changes in fair value, including net transfers in and/or out, of the derivative financial
instruments, measured at fair value on a recurring basis using significant unobservable inputs for the three months ended March 31, 2017:

Series D Preferred Stock Purchase Warrants
Warrants Issued with Convertible Debt
Conversion Option Derivative Liabilities
Total Derivatives

December 31, 2016
$
23,313
1,661,795
951,059
$
2,636,167

Issuance
fair value
$
$

-

Change in
fair value
$
65,967
1,267,440
1,728,345
$
3,061,752

March 31, 2017
$
89,280
2,929,235
2,679,404
$
5,697,919

The following tables set forth the Company’s financial assets and liabilities that were accounted for at fair value on a recurring basis as
of December 31, 2016:

Available-For-Sale Equity Securities
Total Financial Assets

Series D Preferred Stock Purchase Warrants
Warrants Issued with Convertible Debt
Conversion Option Derivative Liabilities
Total Derivatives

December 31, 2016
25,865
$
25,865

Fair value measurements at December 31, 2016
using:
Significant
Quoted prices
other
Significant
in
observable
unobservable
active markets
inputs
inputs
(Level 1)
(Level 2)
(Level 3)
25,865
$
25,865
$
$
-

December 31, 2016
23,313
1,661,795
951,059
$
2,636,167

Quoted prices
in
active markets
(Level 1)
$
-

$
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Significant
other
observable
inputs
(Level 2)

$

-

Significant
unobservable
inputs
(Level 3)
$
23,313
1,661,795
951,059
$
2,636,167

The assumptions for the binomial pricing model are represented in the table below for the warrants issued in the Series D private
placement reflected on a per share common stock equivalent basis.

Assumptions
Expected life (in months)
Expected volatility
Risk-free interest rate
Exercise price
Fair value per warrant

November 10, 2011
60.0
104.5%
0.875%
$
0.81
$
0.54

Warrants
revalued at
December 31, 2016
5.0
83.5%
0.62%
$
0.25
$
0.02

Warrants
revalued at
March 31, 2017
1.2
98.3%
0.74%
$
0.25
$
0.08

The assumptions for the binomial pricing model are represented in the table below for the warrants issued with the Convertible Debt
throughout the period reflected on a per share common stock equivalent basis.

Assumptions
Expected life (in months)
Expected volatility
Risk-free interest rate
Exercise price
Fair value per warrant

At
Issuance
Fair value
60.0
118.3-120.1 %
1.48-1.69 %
$
0.40
$ 0.19-$0.21

Warrants
Warrants
revalued
revalued
at
at
December 31, 2016
March 31, 2017
43.0-51.0
40.0-48.0
110.0-116.0 %
106.0-110.0 %
1.93%
1.50%
$
0.40
$
0.40
$ 0.12-0.14
$ 0.21-0.23

The assumptions for the binomial pricing model are represented in the table below for the conversion options reflected on a per share
common stock equivalent basis.

Assumptions
Expected life (in months)
Expected volatility
Risk-free interest rate
Exercise price
Fair value per conversion option

Conversion
Conversion
options
options
At Issuance
At Settlement
revalued at
revalued at
fair value
fair value
December 31, 2016
March 31, 2017
6.0-24.0
0-18.0
6.0-15.0
4.0-12.0
104.2-153.8%
86.9%-142.2%
84.4-94.8%
90.2-109.3%
0.05-0.99%
0.01-0.72%
0.62-0.85%
0.91-1.03%
$
0.10-$0.35 $
0.10-$0.25 $
0.28 $
0.28
$
0.09-$0.28 $
0.07-$0.26 $
0.03-$0.06 $
0.10-$0.13
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5) Commitments and Contingencies
Operating Leases
Our corporate offices are currently located at 14 Norfolk Avenue, South Easton, Massachusetts 02375. We are currently paying $4,800
per month, on a lease extension, signed on December 29, 2016, that expires December 31, 2017, for our corporate office. We expanded our
space to include the first floor starting May 1, 2017 with an increase in monthly rent of $2,150.
On November 1, 2014 we signed a lease for lab space in Medford, MA. The lease expires December 30, 2017 and requires monthly
payments of $5,385 subject to annual cost of living increases.
Rental costs are expensed as incurred. During the three months ended March 31, 2017 and 2016 we incurred $30,896 and $33,877 in
rent expense, respectively for the use of our corporate office and research and development facilities.
Government Grants
We have received a $1.05 million NIH SBIR Phase II Grant. Under the grant, the NIH has committed to pay the Company to develop a
high-throughput, high pressure-based DNA Shearing System for Next Generation Sequencing and other genomic applications.
6) Convertible Debt and Other Debt
We entered into Subscription Agreements (the “ Subscription Agreement”) with various individuals (each, a “Purchaser”) between July
23, 2015 and March 31, 2016, pursuant to which the Company sold Senior Secured Convertible Debentures (the “Debentures”) and
warrants to purchase shares of common stock equal to 50% of the number of shares issuable pursuant to the subscription amount (the
“Warrants”) for an aggregate purchase price of $6,329,549 (the “Purchase Price”).
The Company issued a principal aggregate amount of $6,962,504 in Debentures which includes a 10% original issue discount on the
Purchase Price. The Debenture does not accrue any additional interest during the first year it is outstanding but accrues interest at a rate
equal to 10% per annum for the second year it is outstanding. The Debenture has a maturity date of two years from issuance. The
Debenture is convertible any time after its issuance date. The Purchaser has the right to convert the Debenture into shares of the Company’s
common stock at a fixed conversion price equal to $0.28 per share, subject to applicable adjustments. In the second year that the Debenture
is outstanding, any interest accrued shall be payable quarterly in either cash or common stock, at the Company’s discretion.
At any time after the Issuance Date, the Company has the option, subject to certain conditions, to redeem some or all of the then
outstanding principal amount of the Debenture for cash in an amount equal to the sum of (i) 120% of the then outstanding principal amount
of the Debenture, (ii) accrued but unpaid interest and (iii) any liquidated damages and other amounts due in respect of the Debenture.
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Warrants
The Company issued warrants exercisable into a total of 11,302,706 shares of our common stock. The Warrants issued in this
transaction are immediately exercisable at an exercise price of $0.40 per share, subject to applicable adjustments including full ratchet antidilution in the event that we issue any securities at a price lower than the exercise price then in effect. The Warrants have an expiration
period of five years from the original issue date. The Warrants are subject to adjustment for stock splits, stock dividends or recapitalizations
and also include anti-dilution price protection for subsequent equity sales below the exercise price.
Subject to the terms and conditions of the Warrants, at any time commencing six months from the Final Closing, the Company has the
right to call the Warrants for cancellation if the volume weighted average price of its Common Stock on the OTCQB (or other primary
trading market or exchange on which the Common Stock is then traded) equals or exceeds three times the per share exercise price of the
Warrants for 15 out of 20 consecutive trading days.
Security Agreement
In connection with the Subscription Agreement and Debenture, the Company entered into Security Agreements with the Purchasers
whereby the Company agreed to grant to Purchasers an unconditional and continuing, first priority security interest in all of the assets and
property of the Company to secure the prompt payment, performance and discharge in full of all of Company’s obligations under the
Debentures, Warrants and the other Transaction Documents.
The Company determined that the conversion feature of the Debentures met the definition of a liability in accordance with ASC 81540 and therefore bifurcated the conversion feature on each debt agreement and accounted for it as a derivative liability. The fair value of
the conversion feature was accounted for as a note discount and are amortized to interest expense over the life of the loan. The fair value of
the conversion feature was reflected in the conversion option liability line in the consolidated balance sheets.
The proceeds from these convertible debts were allocated between the host debt instrument and the convertible option based on the
residual method. The estimated fair value of the convertible option was determined using a binomial formula, resulting in allocations to the
convertible option and accounted for as a liability in the Company’s consolidated balance sheet. In accordance with the provisions of ASC
815-40, the gross proceeds are offset by debt discounts, which are amortized to interest expense over the expected life of the debt.
ASC 470-20 states that the proceeds from the issuance of debt with detachable stock warrants should be allocated between the debt and
warrants on the basis of their relative fair market values. The debt discount will be amortized to interest expense over the two year term of
these loans. We amortized $5,616,009 of the debt discount to interest expense through the first quarter of 2017. The warrants issued in
connection with the convertible debentures are classified as warrant derivative liabilities because the warrants are entitled to certain rights
in subsequent financings and the warrants contain “down-round protection” and therefore, do not meet the scope exception for treatment as
a derivative under ASC 815, Derivatives and Hedging, (“ASC 815”). Since “down-round protection” is not an input into the calculation of
the fair value of the warrants, the warrants cannot be considered indexed to the Company’s own stock which is a requirement for the scope
exception as outlined under ASC 815. The estimated fair value of the warrants was determined using the binomial model, resulting in an
allocation of $2,847,624 to the total warrants out of the gross proceeds of $6,329,549. The fair value will be affected by changes in inputs
to that model including our stock price, expected stock price volatility, the contractual term, and the risk-free interest rate. We will continue
to classify the fair value of the warrants as a liability until the warrants are exercised, expire or are amended in a way that would no longer
require these warrants to be classified as a liability, whichever comes first.
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The specific terms of the convertible debts and outstanding balances as of March 31, 2017 are listed in the table below.

Inception Date
July 22, 2015
September 25, 2015
October 2, 2015
October 6, 2015
October 14, 2015
November 2, 2015
November 10, 2015
November 12, 2015
November 20, 2015
December 4, 2015
December 11, 2015
December 18, 2015
December 31, 2015
January 11, 2016
January 20, 2016
January 29, 2016
February 26, 2016
March 10, 2016
March 18, 2016
March 24, 2016
March 31, 2016
June 15, 2016
June 17, 2016
June 22, 2016
July 6, 2016
July 29, 2016
September 15, 2016

Term
24 months
24 months
24 months
24 months
24 months
24 months
24 months
24 months
24 months
24 months
24 months
24 months
24 months
24 months
24 months
24 months
24 months
24 months
24 months
24 months
24 months
6 months
6 months
6 months
6 months
6 months
8 months

Loan
Amount
$
2,180,000
1,100,000
150,000
30,000
50,000
250,000
50,000
215,000
200,000
170,000
360,000
55,000
100,000
100,000
50,000
300,000
200,000
125,000
360,000
106,667
177,882
40,000
40,000
35,000
85,000
100,000
500,000

Outstanding
Balance
$
2,180,000
1,100,000
150,000
30,000
50,000
250,000
50,000
215,000
200,000
170,000
360,000
55,000
100,000
100,000
50,000
300,000
200,000
125,000
360,000
106,667
177,882
500,000

Original
Deferred
Issue
Interest
Finance
Discount
Rate
Fees
2
1
$
218,000
10% $
388,532
110,0001
10%2
185,956
15,0001
10%2
26,345
3,0001
10%2
5,168
2
1
5,000
10%
8,954
25,0001
10%2
43,079
5,0001
10%2
8,790
21,5001
10%2
38,518
20,0001
10%2
37,185
17,0001
10%2
37,352
36,0001
10%2
75,449
5,5001
10%2
11,714
2
1
10,000
10%
20,634
10,0001
10%2
24,966
5,0001
10%2
9,812
30,0001
10%2
60,887
20,0001
10%2
43,952
12,5001
10%2
18,260
36,0001
10%2
94,992
2
1
10,667
10%
15,427
17,7881
10%2
2,436
12%
12%
12%
12%
12%
85,541
9%
-

Discount
related
to fair
value of
conversion
feature
and
warrants/shares
$
2,163,074
1,022,052
140,832
26,721
49,377
222,723
46,984
212,399
200,000
170,000
360,000
55,000
100,000
80,034
40,188
239,113
156,048
106,740
265,008
91,240
175,446
3,680
3,899
3,373
15,048
25,518
65,972

$

$

$

$

7,129,549

6,829,549

718,496

$

1,158,408

6,040,469

1 The original issue discount is reflected in the first year.
2 The annual interest starts accruing in the second year.
The closings above included a total of approximately $291,000 convertible debentures purchased by related parties who were members
of the Company’s Board of Directors and management and their family members.
At any time after six months from the Inception Date, the Company has the right to prepay the above Debentures in cash for 120% of
the principal amount outstanding and any accrued interest.
In January 2017, we executed an amendment to the July 1, 2016 convertible note that was due on January 6, 2017. We received an
extension of up to three months on the note’s due date. In exchange for the extension, we agreed to issue 50,000 shares of restricted
common stock and pay the investor $10,000 for each 30-day extension. The shares issued for the extension were valued at $10,000 and
recorded as interest expense. We made a payment of $34,000 in January 2017 for the first one-month extension and interest on the note
from the initial close date through February 6, 2017. The Investor had the right, at any time, to convert all or part of the outstanding and
unpaid principal sum and accrued interest into shares of common stock at the conversion price of $0.45. On February 28, 2017, the note
was paid in full.
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Revolving Note Payable
On October 28, 2016, an accredited investor (the “Investor”) purchased from us a promissory note in the aggregate principal amount of
up to $2,000,000 (the “Revolving Note”) due and payable on the earlier of October 28, 2017 (the “Maturity Date”) or on the seventh
business day after the closing of a Qualified Offering (as defined in the Revolving Note). The Investor is obligated to provide us with
advances of $250,000 under the Revolving Note, but the Investor shall not be required to advance more than $250,000 in any individual
fifteen (15) day period and no more than $500,000 in the thirty (30) day period immediately following the date of the initial advance. We
received $2,250,000 pursuant to the Revolving Note as amended and we issued to the Investor warrants to purchase 5,625,000 shares of our
Common Stock at an exercise price per share equal to $0.40 per share. The terms of the Warrants are identical except for the exercise date,
issue date, and termination date which are based on the advance date.
In the event that a Qualified Offering occurs on or prior to the six (6) month anniversary of October 28, 2016, within seven (7)
Business Days of the closing of the Qualified Offering, the Company shall pay a cash fee equal to five percent (5%) of the total outstanding
amount owed by the Company to the Holder as of the closing date of the Qualified Offering or, at the option of the Company, issue to the
Holder a number of restricted shares of the Company’s common stock equal to (x) five percent (5%) of the total outstanding amount owed
by the Company to the Holder as of the closing date of the Qualified Offering divided by (y) the purchase price provided by the documents
governing the Qualified Offering. A Qualified Offering means the completion of a public offering of the Company’s securities pursuant to
which the Company receives aggregate gross proceeds of at least Seven Million United States Dollars (US$7,000,000) in consideration of
the purchase of its securities and resulting in, pursuant to the effectiveness of the registration statement for such offering, the Company’s
common stock being traded on the NASDAQ Capital Market, NASDAQ Global Select Market or the New York Stock Exchange.
In the event that a Qualified Offering occurs following the six (6) month anniversary of October 28, 2016, but prior to the Maturity
Date, within seven(7) Business Days of the closing of the Qualified Offering, the Company shall pay a cash fee equal to five percent (5%)
of the total outstanding amount owed by the Company to the Holder as of the closing date of the Qualified Offering or, at the option of the
Company, issue to the Holder a number of restricted shares of the Company’s common stock equal to (x) five percent (5%) of the total
outstanding amount owed by the Company to the Holder as of the closing date of the Qualified Offering divided by (y) the purchase price
provided by the documents governing the Qualified Offering.
Interest on the principal balance of the Revolving Note shall be paid in full on the Maturity Date, unless otherwise paid prior to the
Maturity Date. Interest shall be assessed as follows: (i) a one-time interest of 10% on all principal amounts advanced prior to April 28,
2017; (ii) the foregoing and 4% on any amount remaining outstanding if the principal amount is repaid between April 28, 2017 and July 28,
2017; or (iii) both of the foregoing and 4% on any amount remaining outstanding if the principal amount is repaid between July 28, 2017
and October 28, 2017.
Broker fees amounting to $196,500, the one-time interest of $225,000 and the fair value of the 5,625,000 warrants issued to the
Investor amounting to $767,650 were recorded as debt discounts and amortized over the term of the revolving note. The unamortized debt
discounts as of March 31, 2017 related to the Revolving Note amounted to $839,969.
The following table provides a summary of the changes in convertible debt and revolving note payable, net of unamortized discount,
during 2017:
Balance at January 1,
Issuance of convertible debt, face value
Deferred financing cost
Debt discount related to one-time interest charge
Debt discount from shares and warrants issued with the notes
Payments
Accretion of interest and amortization of debt discount to interest expense through March 31,
Balance at March 31,
Less: current portion
Convertible debt, long-term portion

$

$

2017
5,273,937
1,000,000
(80,000)
(100,000)
(287,920)
(300,000)
1,281,580
6,787,597
6,782,172
5,425

Other Notes
On January 6, 2016 we signed a Merchant Agreement with a lender. Under the agreement we received $250,000 in exchange for rights
to all customer receipts until the lender is paid $322,500, which is collected at the rate of $1,280 per business day. The payments were
secured by second position rights to all customer receipts until the loan has been paid in full. $138,840 of the proceeds were used to pay off
the outstanding balance of a previous loan from another lender. The Company recognized a gain on the settlement of the previous loan of
$5,044 which was credited to interest expense. The Company paid $2,500 in fees in connection with this loan. We received an additional
$93,161 in June 2016 under the existing Merchant Agreement. The note was still outstanding as of March 31, 2017 with a balance of
$78,322.
On February 8, 2016 we signed a Merchant Agreement with a lender. Under the agreement we received $100,000 in exchange for third
position rights to all customer receipts until the lender is paid $129,900, which is collected at the rate of $927 per business day. The
Company paid $2,000 in fees in connection with this loan. We received an additional $125,000 in June 2016 under the existing Merchant
Agreement of which $48,420 was used to pay off the prior loan. The lender provided an additional $70,000 on August 16, 2016. As of
March 31, 2017, the outstanding balance on this note was zero.
On August 26, 2016 we signed a Merchant Agreement with a lender. Under the agreement we received $122,465 net proceeds in

exchange for rights to all customer receipts which is collected at the rate of $1,386 per business day. As of March 31, 2017, the outstanding
balance on this note was zero.
On February 6, 2017, we signed a Merchant Agreement with a lender. Under the agreement we received a loan of $125,000. The
Company paid $1,250 in fees in connection with this loan. Under the agreement, $16,180 was used to pay off the prior loan. The loan was
still outstanding as of March 31, 2017 with a balance of $72,594.
On February 15, 2017, we received six-month, non-convertible loans in the aggregate of $220,000 from two accredited investors. We
agreed to issue an aggregate of 340,000 shares of restricted common stock. The loans earn no interest but carry a 10% original issue fee.
We recorded the fair value of the shares amounting to $43,616 as debt discounts that will be amortized to interest expense during the term
of the loans. The loans still remain outstanding as of March 31, 2017 with an aggregate balance of $220,000. We amortized $15,551 of debt
discounts in the three months ended March 31, 2017. The unamortized debt discounts as of March 31, 2017 were $48,065.
On March 2, 2017, we signed a Merchant Agreement with a lender. Under the agreement we received a loan of $75,750. The Company
paid no fees in connection with this loan. A loan balance of $59,464 remains outstanding as of March 31, 2017.
On March 14, 2017, we received an eight-month, non-convertible loan of $250,000 from a privately-held investment firm. The loan
earns an annual interest rate of 10% and includes a 10% original issue discount. We also agreed to issue the investor 250,000 shares of
restricted common stock. We recorded the fair value of the shares amounting to $51,748 as a debt discount that will be amortized to interest
expense during the term of the loan. The loan still remains outstanding as of March 31, 2017 with a balance of $250,000. We amortized
$7,248 of the debt discount in the three months ended March 31, 2017. The unamortized debt discount as of March 31, 2017 was $69,500.
On March 21, 2017, we received an eight-month, non-convertible loan of $170,000 from an accredited investor. The loan earns an
annual interest rate of 10% and includes a 10% original issue discount. We also agreed to issue the investor 170,000 shares of restricted
common stock. We recorded the fair value of the shares amounting to $35,079 as a debt discount that will be amortized to interest expense
during the term of the loan. The loan still remains outstanding as of March 31, 2017 with a balance of $170,000. We amortized $2,893 of
the debt discount in the three months ended March 31, 2017. The unamortized debt discount as of March 31, 2017 was $49,186.
7) Stockholders’ Deficit
Preferred Stock
We are authorized to issue 1,000,000 shares of preferred stock with a par value of $0.01. Of the 1,000,000 shares of preferred stock:
1) 20,000 shares have been designated as Series A Junior Participating Preferred Stock (“Junior A”)
2) 313,960 shares have been designated as Series A Convertible Preferred Stock (“Series A”)
3) 279,256 shares have been designated as Series B Convertible Preferred Stock (“Series B”)
4) 88,098 shares have been designated as Series C Convertible Preferred Stock (“Series C”)
5) 850 shares have been designated as Series D Convertible Preferred Stock (“Series D”)
6) 500 shares have been designated as Series E Convertible Preferred Stock (“Series E”)
7) 240,000 shares have been designated as Series G Convertible Preferred Stock (“Series G”)
8) 10,000 shares have been designated as Series H Convertible Preferred Stock (“Series H”)
9) 21 shares have been designated as Series H2 Convertible Preferred Stock (“Series H2”)
10) 6,250 shares have been designated as Series J Convertible Preferred Stock (“Series J”)
11) 15,000 shares have been designated as Series K Convertible Preferred Stock (“Series K”)
As of March 31, 2017, there were no shares of Junior A, and Series A, B, C and E issued and outstanding. See our Annual Report on
Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2016 for the pertinent disclosures of preferred stock.
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Stock Options and Warrants
Our stockholders approved our amended 2005 Equity Incentive Plan (the “Plan”) pursuant to which an aggregate of 1,800,000 shares
of our common stock were reserved for issuance upon exercise of stock options or other equity awards made under the Plan. Under the
Plan, we may award stock options, shares of common stock, and other equity interests in the Company to employees, officers, directors,
consultants, and advisors, and to any other persons the Board of Directors deems appropriate. As of March 31, 2017, options to acquire
1,083,750 shares were outstanding under the Plan.
On December 12, 2013 at the Company’s special meeting the shareholders approved the 2013 Equity Incentive Plan (the “2013 Plan”)
pursuant to which 3,000,000 shares of our common stock were reserved for issuance upon exercise of stock options or other equity awards.
Under the 2013 Plan, we may award stock options, shares of common stock, and other equity interests in the Company to employees,
officers, directors, consultants, and advisors, and to any other persons the Board of Directors deems appropriate. As of March 31, 2017,
options to acquire 2,707,500 shares were outstanding under the Plan with 292,500 shares available for future grants under the 2013 Plan.
On November 29, 2015 the Company’s Board of Directors adopted the 2015 Nonqualified Stock Option Plan (the “2015 Plan”)
pursuant to which 5,000,000 shares of our common stock were reserved for issuance upon exercise of non-qualified stock options. Under
the 2015 Plan, we may award non-qualified stock options in the Company to employees, officers, directors, consultants, and advisors, and
to any other persons the Board of Directors deems appropriate. As of March 31, 2017, non-qualified options to acquire 4,023,000 shares
were outstanding under the Plan with 977,000 shares available for future grants under the 2015 Plan.
All of the outstanding non-qualified options had an exercise price that was at or above the Company’s common stock share price at
time of issuance.
The following tables summarize information concerning options and warrants outstanding and exercisable:

Balance outstanding, 12/31/16
Granted
Exercised
Expired
Forfeited
Balance outstanding,
3/31/2017

Stock Options
Weighted
Average
Price
Shares
per share
0.42
5,269,250 $
2,615,000
—
(70,000)
—
7,814,250

Warrants
Weighted
Average

1.00
—

Shares
26,459,695
2,600,000
—
(3,660,500)
—

0.37

25,399,195

0.28

$
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Total

Price
per share
$
0.40

$

0.40
—
0.35
—

Shares
31,728,945
5,215,000
—
(3,730,500)
—

0.41

33,213,445

Exercisable
29,730,959

29,245,037

Range of
Exercise Prices
$0.25 - $0.39
0.40 - 0.49
0.50 - 0.59
0.60 - 0.69
1.00 - 1.25
$0.25 - $1.25

Number of
Options
4,240,500
2,786,000
226,250
385,500
176,000
7,814,250

Options Outstanding
Weighted Average
Remaining
Contractual
Life (Years)
9.0 $
8.5
5.4
2.9
3.0
8.3 $

Exercise
Price
0.29
0.40
0.50
0.60
1.00
0.37

Options Exercisable
Weighted Average
Remaining
Number of
Contractual
Exercise
Options
Life (Years)
Price
1,437,007
7.5 $
0.30
1,621,085
8.3
0.40
226,250
5.4
0.50
385,500
2.9
0.60
3.0
1.00
176,000
7.0 $
0.42
3,845,842

As of March 31, 2017, the total estimated fair value of unvested stock options to be amortized over their remaining vesting period was
$730,174. The non-cash, stock-based compensation expense associated with the vesting of these options is expected to be $309,911 in
2017, $286,355 in 2018, $110,522 in 2019 and $23,386 in 2020. The fair value of options granted in 2017 was $487,914.
The aggregate intrinsic value associated with the options outstanding and exercisable as of March 31, 2017 was $28,740. The
aggregate intrinsic value associated with the warrants outstanding and exercisable as of March 31, 2017 was $79,092.
Common Stock Issuances
On various dates from January to March 2017 the Company issued 810,000 shares of restricted common stock to investors as
compensation for loans provided to us.
8) Subsequent Events
On April 3, 2017, we signed a six-month agreement with an investor relations firm. The agreement includes a cash payment of $10,000
plus a convertible 8-month note for $50,000 with the following significant terms: (i) convertible at $0.40/share, (ii) bears 10% annual
interest, (iii) a 20% pre-payment penalty if the Company wants to pre-pay the Note, and (iv) a default rate of 18%.
On April 19, 2017, we received a 7-month non-convertible loan of $250,000 from a privately-held investment firm. The loan earns an
annual interest rate of 10% and includes a 10% original issue discount. We agreed to issue 25,000 shares at closing. Until the loan is repaid,
we will, over the next one hundred eighty (180) days, issue 75,000 shares to the Investor every sixty (60) days for a total issuance of
250,000 shares. No shares other than the initial 25,000 will be issued to the Investor if the loan is fully paid by June 18, 2017.
On May 3, 2017, we received $250,000 pursuant to the Revolving Note as amended and we issued to the Investor warrants to purchase
625,000 shares of our Common Stock at an exercise price per share equal to $0.40 per share. The Revolving Note was amended on May 2,
2017 to increase the aggregate principal amount to $3,000,000, to issue 500,000 shares of our Common Stock to the Investor, to decrease
the exercise price per share of the warrants to the lower of (i) $0.40 or (ii) the per share purchase price of the shares of our Common Stock
sold in the Qualified Offering, and to change the references in the Revolving Note from “the six (6) month anniversary of October 28,
2016” to “July 25, 2017.”
On May 10, 2017, we received $149,164 from the exercise of 596,657 stock purchase warrants from the Series D registered direct
offering on November 10, 2011. In consideration for the warrant exercises, we issued to the investors warrants to purchase 1,044,150
shares of our Common Stock at an exercise price per share equal to $0.28 per share. The warrants expire on the third year anniversary date.
On May 10, 2017, an investor converted 75 shares of Series D Preferred Stock into 187,500 shares of Common Stock. In consideration
for the preferred stock conversion, we issued 112,500 shares of restricted Common Stock.
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ITEM 2. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations
CAUTIONARY NOTE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS
This Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q contains forward-looking statements within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act of
1933, as amended (the “Securities Act”) and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”). In
some cases, forward-looking statements are identified by terms such as “may,” “will,” “should,” “could,” “would,” “expects,” “plans,”
“anticipates,” “believes,” “estimates,” “projects,” “predicts,” “potential” and similar expressions intended to identify forward-looking
statements. Such statements include, without limitation, statements regarding:
●

our need for, and our ability to raise, additional equity or debt financing on acceptable terms, if at all;

●

our need to take additional cost reduction measures, cease operations or sell our operating assets, if we are unable to obtain
sufficient additional financing;

●

our belief that we have sufficient liquidity to finance normal operations;

●

the options we may pursue in light of our financial condition;

●

the amount of cash necessary to operate our business;

●

the anticipated uses of grant revenue and the potential for increased grant revenue in future periods;

●

our plans and expectations with respect to our continued operations;

●

our belief that PCT has achieved initial market acceptance in the mass spectrometry and other markets;

●

the expected increase in the number of pressure cycling technology (“PCT”)and constant pressure (“CP”) based units installed and
the increase in revenues from the sale of consumable products and extended service contracts;

●

the expected development and success of new instrument and consumables product offerings;

●

the potential applications for our instrument and consumables product offerings;

●

the expected expenses of, and benefits and results from, our research and development efforts;

●

the expected benefits and results from our collaboration programs, strategic alliances and joint ventures;

●

our expectation of obtaining additional research grants from the government in the future;

●

our expectations of the results of our development activities funded by government research grants;

●

the potential size of the market for biological sample preparation;

●

general economic conditions;

●

the anticipated future financial performance and business operations of our company;

●

our reasons for focusing our resources in the market for genomic, proteomic, lipidomic and small molecule sample preparation;

●

the importance of mass spectrometry as a laboratory tool;
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●

the advantages of PCT over other current technologies as a method of biological sample preparation in biomarker discovery,
forensics, and histology and for other applications;

●

the capabilities and benefits of our PCT sample preparation system, consumables and other products;

●

our belief that laboratory scientists will achieve results comparable with those reported to date by certain research scientists who
have published or presented publicly on PCT and our other products;

●

our ability to retain our core group of scientific, administrative and sales personnel; and

●

our ability to expand our customer base in sample preparation and for other applications of PCT and our other products.

These forward-looking statements are only predictions and involve known and unknown risks, uncertainties and other factors that may
cause our actual results, levels of activity, performance or achievements to be materially different from any future results, levels of activity,
performance or achievements, expressed or implied, by such forward-looking statements. Also, these forward-looking statements represent
our estimates and assumptions only as of the date of this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q. Except as otherwise required by law, we
expressly disclaim any obligation or undertaking to release publicly any updates or revisions to any forward-looking statement contained in
this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q to reflect any change in our expectations or any change in events, conditions or circumstances on
which any of our forward-looking statements are based. Factors that could cause or contribute to differences in our future financial and
other results include those discussed in the risk factors set forth in Part I, Item 1A of our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2016. We qualify all of our forward-looking statements by these cautionary statements.
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OVERVIEW
We are focused on solving the challenging problems inherent in biological sample preparation, a crucial laboratory step performed by
scientists worldwide working in biological life sciences research. Sample preparation is a term that refers to a wide range of activities that
precede most forms of scientific analysis. Sample preparation is often complex, time-consuming and, in our belief, one of the most errorprone steps of scientific research. It is a widely-used laboratory undertaking – the requirements of which drive what we believe is a large
and growing worldwide market. We have developed and patented a novel, enabling technology platform that can control the sample
preparation process. It is based on harnessing the unique properties of high hydrostatic pressure. This process, which we refer to as Pressure
Cycling Technology, or PCT, uses alternating cycles of hydrostatic pressure between ambient and ultra-high levels i.e., 20,000 psi or
greater to safely, conveniently and reproducibly control the actions of molecules in biological samples, such as cells and tissues from
human, animal, plant and microbial sources.
Our pressure cycling technology uses internally developed instrumentation that is capable of cycling pressure between ambient and
ultra-high levels at controlled temperatures and specific time intervals, to rapidly and repeatedly control the interactions of bio-molecules,
such as deoxyribonucleic acid (“DNA”), ribonucleic acid (“RNA”), proteins, lipids and small molecules. Our laboratory instrument, the
Barocycler ® , and our internally developed consumables product line, which include our Pressure Used to Lyse Samples for Extraction
(“PULSE”) tubes, and other processing tubes, and application specific kits such as consumable products and reagents, together make up our
PCT Sample Preparation System (“PCT SPS”).
We have experienced negative cash flows from operations with respect to our pressure cycling technology business since our
inception. As of March 31, 2017, we did not have adequate working capital resources to satisfy our current liabilities and as a result we
have substantial doubt about our ability to continue as a going concern. Based on our current projections, including equity financing
subsequent to March 31, 2017, we believe we will have the cash resources that will enable us to continue to fund normal operations into the
foreseeable future.
We need substantial additional capital to fund normal operations in future periods. If we are able to obtain additional capital or
otherwise increase our revenues, we may increase spending in specific research and development applications and engineering projects and
may hire additional sales personnel or invest in targeted marketing programs. In the event that we are unable to obtain financing on
acceptable terms, or at all, we will likely be required to cease our operations, pursue a plan to sell our operating assets, or otherwise modify
our business strategy, which could materially harm our future business prospects.
We have 14 United States granted patents and one foreign granted patent (Japan: 5587770, EXTRACTION AND PARTITIONING
OF MOLECULES) covering multiple applications of PCT in the life sciences field. PBI also has 19 pending patents in the USA, Canada,
Europe, Australia, China, and Taiwan PCT employs a unique approach that we believe has the potential for broad use in a number of
established and emerging life sciences areas, which include, but are not limited to:
●

biological sample preparation – including but not limited to sample extraction, homogenization, and digestion - in such study areas
as genomic, proteomic, lipidomic, metabolomic and small molecule;

●

pathogen inactivation;

●

protein purification;

●

control of chemical reactions, particularly enzymatic; and

●

immunodiagnostics.
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We reported a number of accomplishments in the first few months of 2017:
On February 2, 2017, the Company announced that it had achieved CE Marking for the Barocycler 2320EXTREME, the Company’s
recently released, next-generation PCT-based sample preparation instrument. PBI is now permitted to begin sales of the Barocycler
2320EXT in the European Economic Area.
On March 1, 2017, the Company announced that its Barocycler 2320EXTREME had been named the “Best New Instrument for
Sample Preparation 2017” by Corporate America News (“Corp America”) as part of the publication’s 2017 North American Excellence
Awards.
On March 23, 2017, the Company announced that it had significantly bolstered its marketing and sales capabilities by contracting with
EKG Sales Associates, a lead generation company and by hiring two of its planned four additional field sales directors.
On April 10, 2017, the Company announced that Joseph Damasio, Jr. had joined the Company as its full-time Chief Financial Officer
and Vice President of Finance.
Results of Operations
Comparison for the three months ended March 31, 2017 and 2016
Revenue
We recognized total revenue of $551,357 for the three months ended March 31, 2017 as compared to $510,478 during the three months
ended March 31, 2016, an increase of $40,879 or 8%. This increase is attributable to increases in the sales of our products and services as
detailed below.
Products, Services, Other. Revenue from the sale of products and services increased 16% to $525,998 for the three months ended
March 31, 2017 as compared to $454,350 during the three months ended March 31, 2016. This increase was primarily attributable to an
increase in the sale of instrument systems. Sales of consumables also increased for the three months ended March 31, 2017 to $63,264
compared to $44,234 during the same period in the prior year, an increase of 43%.
Grant Revenue. During the three months ended March 31, 2017, we recorded grant revenue of $25,359 compared to grant revenue of
$56,128 in the comparable period in 2016. Work on the $1.05 million NIH grant decreased during the first quarter but we expect an
increase in grant work later in the year.
Cost of Products and Services
The cost of products and services was $235,997 for the three months ended March 31, 2017 compared to $221,699 for the comparable
period in 2016. The cost of products and services increased with the concomitant increase in the sales of instrument systems and
consumables. Gross profit margin on products and services increased to 55% for the three months ended March 31, 2017, as compared to
51% for the prior period.
Research and Development
Research and development expenditures were $263,456 during the three months ended March 31, 2017 as compared to $335,270 in the
same period in 2016, a decrease of $71,814 or 21%. The prior period included company funded independent research activities in the
development of an improved rape kit while the current period had decreased employee related costs.
Research and development expense recognized in the three months ended March 31, 2017 and 2016 included $15,970 and $20,381 of
non-cash, stock-based compensation expense, respectively.
Selling and Marketing
Selling and marketing expenses increased to $213,009 for the three months ended March 31, 2017 from $191,236 for the comparable
period in 2016, an increase of $21,773 or 11%. This increase is primarily attributable to expansion of the company’s sales force by two
individuals and recruitment fees.
During the three months ended March 31, 2017 and 2016, selling and marketing expense included $10,886 and $12,690 of non-cash,
stock-based compensation expense, respectively.
General and Administrative
General and administrative costs totaled $837,998 for the three months ended March 31, 2017 as compared to $808,218 for the
comparable period in 2016, an increase of $29,780 or 4%. The prior period activity included credits received from charges incurred with a
former professional service provider.
During the three months ended March 31, 2017 and 2016, general and administrative expense included $47,673 and $68,391 of noncash, stock-based compensation expense, respectively.
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Operating Loss
Our operating loss was $999,103 for the three months ended March 31, 2017 as compared to $1,045,945 for the comparable period in
2016, a decrease of $46,842 or 4%. This decrease was primarily due to decreases in expenditures in R&D combined with increases in
product sales, as described above.
Other Income (Expense), Net
Interest (Expense) Income
Interest expense was $1,526,632 for the three months ended March 31, 2017 as compared to interest expense of $835,144 for the three
months ended March 31, 2016. Interest expense reflected amortization of debt discounts related primarily to the sale of senior secured
convertible debentures. The increase is from deferred finance charges on new convertible loans.
Change in fair value of warrant derivative liability
During the three months ended March 31, 2017, we recorded non-cash expense of $1,333,407 for warrant revaluation in our
consolidated statements of operations due to an increase in the fair value of the warrant liability related to warrants issued in our private
placement offerings. We recorded $1,217,722 non-cash income in the prior comparable period. This increase in fair value was primarily
due to the increase in price of the Company’s common stock at March 31, 2017 as compared to the price on March 31, 2016. The
components for determining the fair value of the warrants are contained in the table in Note 4 of the accompanying consolidated financial
statements.
Change in fair value of conversion option liability
During the three months ended March 31, 2017, we recorded non-cash income of $1,728,345 for conversion option revaluation
expense in our consolidated statements of operations due to an increase in the fair value of the conversion option liability related to
convertible debt. This increase in fair value was primarily due to the increase in price of the Company’s common stock on March 31, 2017
as compared to the price on March 31, 2016 or the date the debt was incurred during the quarter and the shorter time to maturity of the
debt. For the three months ended March 31, 2016 we recorded non-cash income $2,850,668 for conversion option liability revaluation. The
components for determining the fair value of the conversion option liabilities are contained in the table in Note 4 of the accompanying
consolidated financial statements.
Other Expense
Other Expense totaled $959 for the three months ended March 31, 2017 as compared to $912 for the comparable period in 2016.
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Liquidity and Financial Condition
We have experienced negative cash flows from operations with respect to our pressure cycling technology business since our
inception. As of March 31, 2017, we did not have adequate working capital resources to satisfy our current liabilities and as a result, we
have substantial doubt regarding our ability to continue as a going concern. We have been successful in raising cash through debt and
equity offerings in the past and as described in Note 6, we received $1,840,750 in gross proceeds from loans in the first quarter of 2017. We
have efforts in place to continue to raise cash through debt and equity offerings.
We will need substantial additional capital to fund our operations in future periods. In the event that we are unable to obtain financing
on acceptable terms, or at all, we will likely be required to cease our operations, pursue a plan to sell our operating assets, or otherwise
modify our business strategy, which could materially harm our future business prospects.
On December 22, 2016, the Company filed a preliminary Form S-1 with the Securities and Exchange Commission to register shares of
its common stock which would allow the Company to raise up to $12.5 million.
Net cash used in operations for the three months ended March 31, 2017 was $1,165,410 as compared to $1,233,458 for the three
months ended March 31, 2016. We had a lower operating loss in the current period offset by additional interest expense.
Net cash used in investing activities for the three months ended March 31, 2017 totaled $15,608 compared to none in the prior period.
Cash capital expenditures included laboratory equipment and IT equipment.
Net cash provided by financing activities for the three months ended March 31, 2017 was $1,164,093 as compared to $1,210,062 for
the same period in the prior year. The cash from financing activities in the period ending March 31, 2017 included $920,000 from our
Revolving Note. We also received $773,000 from non-convertible debt, net of fees, less payment on non-convertible debt of $228,907. The
prior period included proceeds from senior secured convertible debt.
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ITEM 3. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK
This Item 3 is not applicable to us as a smaller reporting company and has been omitted.
ITEM 4. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES
We maintain disclosure controls and procedures that are designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed in our Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 filings are recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified in the SEC’s rules and
forms, and that such information is accumulated and communicated to our management, including our President and Chief Executive
Officer (Principal Executive Officer) and Chief Financial Officer (Principal Financial Officer), as appropriate, to allow timely decisions
regarding required disclosure. In designing and evaluating the disclosure controls and procedures, management recognized that controls
and procedures, no matter how well designed and operated, can provide only reasonable assurance of achieving the desired control
objectives, as ours are designed to do, and management was necessarily required to apply its judgment in evaluating the cost-benefit
relationship of possible controls and procedures.
As of March 31, 2017, we carried out an evaluation, under the supervision and with the participation of our management, including our
Principal Executive Officer and Principal Financial Officer, of the effectiveness of the design and operation of our disclosure controls and
procedures, as defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. Based upon that evaluation, our
Principal Executive Officer and Principal Financial Officer concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures were not effective.
Our conclusion that our disclosure controls and procedures were not effective as of March 31, 2017 is due to the continued presence of
the material weaknesses in our internal control over financial reporting identified in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2016. These material weaknesses are the following:
●

We identified a lack of sufficient segregation of duties. Specifically, this material weakness is such that the design over these areas
relies primarily on detective controls and could be strengthened by adding preventative controls to properly safeguard Company
assets.

●

Management has identified a lack of sufficient personnel in the accounting function due to our limited resources with appropriate
skills, training and experience to perform the review processes to ensure the complete and proper application of generally accepted
accounting principles, particularly as it relates to valuation of warrants and other complex debt /equity transactions. Specifically, this
material weakness resulted in audit adjustments to the annual consolidated financial statements and revisions to related disclosures,
valuation of warrants and other equity transactions.

●

Limited policies and procedures that cover recording and reporting of financial transactions.

●

Lack of multiple levels of review over the financial reporting process

We continue to plan to remediate those material weaknesses as follows:
●

Improve the effectiveness of the accounting group by augmenting our existing resources with additional consultants or employees to
assist in the analysis and recording of complex accounting transactions, and to simultaneously achieve desired organizational
structuring for improved segregation of duties. We plan to mitigate this identified deficiency by hiring an independent consultant
once we generate significantly more revenue or raise significant additional working capital.

●

Improve expert review and achieve desired segregation procedures by strengthening cross approval of various functions including
quarterly internal audit procedures where appropriate.

During the period covered by this Report, we implemented and performed additional substantive procedures, such as supervisory
review of work papers and consistent use of financial models used in equity valuations, to ensure our consolidated financial statements as
of and for the three month period ended March 31, 2017, are fairly stated in all material respects in accordance with GAAP. We have not,
however, been able to fully remediate the material weaknesses due to our limited financial resources. Our remediation efforts are largely
dependent upon our securing additional financing to cover the costs of implementing the changes required. If we are unsuccessful in
securing such funds, remediation efforts may be adversely affected in a material manner.
Except as described above, there have been no changes in our internal controls over financial reporting that occurred during the period
ended March 31, 2017 that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal controls over financial
reporting.
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PART II. OTHER INFORMATION
Item 1. Legal Proceedings
We are not currently involved in any litigation that we believe could have a material adverse effect on our financial condition or results
of operations. There is no action, suit, proceeding, inquiry or investigation before or by any court, public board, government agency, selfregulatory organization or body pending or, to the knowledge of the executive officers of our company or any of our subsidiaries,
threatened against or affecting our company, our common stock, any of our subsidiaries or of our companies or our subsidiaries’ officers or
directors in their capacities as such, in which an adverse decision could have a material adverse effect.
Item 1A. Risk Factors
Factors that could cause or contribute to differences in our future financial and operating results include those discussed in the risk
factors set forth in Item 1 of our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2016. The risks described in our Form 10K and this Report are not the only risks that we face. Additional risks not presently known to us or that we do not currently consider
significant may also have an adverse effect on the Company. If any of the risks actually occur, our business, results of operations, cash
flows or financial condition could suffer.
There have been no material changes to the risk factors set forth in Item 1 of our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2016.
Item 2. Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities and Use of Proceeds
Please refer to Note 6, Convertible Debt and Other Debt, for a discussion of the sale of unregistered securities that took place for the
quarter ended March 31, 2017.
In January 2017, we executed an amendment to the July 1, 2016 convertible note that was due on January 6, 2017. We received an
extension of up to three months on the note’s due date. In exchange for the extension, we agreed to issue 50,000 shares of restricted
common stock and pay the investor $10,000 for each 30-day extension. The note was paid in full.
On January 17, 2017, we signed a one-year agreement with an investor relations firm. We have the right to terminate the agreement
within 10 days of the end of each three-month period. We are committed to pay the IR firm $25,000 for each three-month term, in three
equal monthly allotments, should we choose to keep them under contract. We also have awarded the IR firm warrants to purchase the
Company’s restricted common stock at an exercise price of $0.40/share. The number of warrants and exercise price that we are committed
to pay the IR firm for each three-month period, should we choose to keep them under contract, is as follows: Months 1-3: 100,000 warrants
at $0.40. Months 4-6: 125,000 warrants at $0.60. Months 7-9: 125,000 warrants at $0.80. Months 10-12: 150,000 warrants at $1.00.
We received $250,000 in January 2017, $500,000 in February 2017 and $250,000 in March 2017 pursuant to the October Revolving
Note and we issued to the Investor additional warrants to purchase 2,500,000 shares of our common stock. The terms of the Warrants are
identical except for the exercise date, issue date, and termination date. Interest on the principal balance of the Revolving Note shall be paid
in full on the Maturity Date, unless otherwise paid prior to the Maturity Date.
On February 15, 2017, we received a six-month, non-convertible loan of $110,000 from each of two accredited investors. We agreed to
issue the investors 170,000 shares of restricted common stock. The loans earn no interest but carry a 10% original issue fee.
On March 14, 2017, we received an eight-month, non-convertible loan of $250,000 from a privately-held investment firm. The loan
earns an annual interest rate of 10% and includes a 10% original issue discount. We also agreed to issue the investor 250,000 shares of
restricted common stock.
On March 16, 2017 and March 29, 2017, we awarded 660,000 incentive stock options to certain employees and 1,955,000 nonqualified stock options to officers, consultants and directors of the Company. Terms of the stock options include the following significant
items: (i) $0.28 exercise price, (ii) 10-year life, (iii) 36 month vesting equally per month for employees and 12 month vesting equally per
month for directors, (iv) options vest immediately upon change in-control.
On March 21, 2017, we received an eight-month, non-convertible loan of $170,000 from an accredited investor. The loan earns an
annual interest rate of 10% and includes a 10% original issue discount. We also agreed to issue the investor 170,000 shares of restricted
common stock.
Item 3. Defaults upon Senior Securities
None.
Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosures
Not applicable.
Item 5. Other Information
None.
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Item 6. Exhibits
Exhibits
10.1

Amendment to the July 1, 2016 $200,000 Convertible Note between Vision Capital and Pressure BioSciences, Inc.

10.2

Securities Purchase Agreement dated March 14, 2017

31.1

Principal Executive Officer and Principal Financial Officer Certification Pursuant to Item 601(b)(31) of Regulation S-K, as
adopted pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

31.2

Principal Financial Officer Certification Pursuant to Item 601(b)(31) of Regulation S-K, as adopted pursuant to Section 302
of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

32.1*

Principal Executive Officer Certification Pursuant to Item 601(b)(32) of Regulation S-K, as adopted pursuant to Section 906
of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

32.2*

Principal Financial Officer Certification Pursuant to Item 601(b)(32) of Regulation S-K, as adopted pursuant to Section 906
of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

101.INS

XBRL Instance Document

101.SCH

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document

101.CAL

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Document

101.DEF

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Document

101.LAB

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Document

101.PRE

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Document

* In accordance with SEC Release 33-8238, Exhibits 32.1 and 32.2 are furnished and not filed.
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SIGNATURES
Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant caused this report to be signed on its behalf by
the undersigned thereunto duly authorized.
PRESSURE BIOSCIENCES, INC.
Date: May 15, 2017

By: /s/ Richard T. Schumacher
Richard T. Schumacher
President & Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer)

Date: May 15, 2017

By: /s/ Joseph L. Damasio, Jr.
Joseph L. Damasio, Jr.
Vice President of Finance & Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial Officer)
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AMENDMENT TO THE JULY 1, 2016 $200,000 CONVERTIBLE NOTE BETWEEN VISION CAPITAL AND PRESSURE
BIOSCIENCES, INC.
This shall serve as an amendment to the July 1, 2016 Convertible Note between Pressure BioSciences Inc. (the Company) and Vision
Capital (the Investor). Whereas, the Company would like up to a three (3) month extension of the Loan Due Date (January 6, 2017) and the
Investor is willing to grant this extension (to April 6, 2017), the following is mutually agreed upon:
1.

The Company shall issue to the Investor 50,000 newly issued restricted common shares of Pressure BioSciences.

2.

The Company shall pay to the Investor $10,000 for each 30 day extension. Both the Company and the Investor have to agree to
extend the Due Date up to a total of three 30 day periods. The first 30 day period begins on January 7, 2017 and extends through the
close of business February 6, 2017. The second 30 day period, if needed by the Company, shall begin on February 7, 2017 and
extend through the close of business March 6, 2017. The third and final extension, if needed by the Company, shall begin on March
7, 2017 and extend through the close of business April 6, 2017.
In the event that the Company decides not to extend past the first 30 day period or through the second 30 day period, it is
understood by both parties the Investor will retain ALL 50,000 shares of restricted common stock in Pressure BioSciences
mentioned in number 1 above.

For Pressure BioSciences
Richard T. Schumacher
President and CEO

For Vision Capital

SECURITIES PURCHASE AGREEMENT
This Securities Purchase Agreement (this “Agreement”) is dated as of March ___, 2017, between Pressure BioSciences, Inc. a
Massachusetts corporation (the “Company”), and the purchaser identified on the signature pages hereto (including its successors and
assigns, the “Purchaser”).
WHEREAS, subject to the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement and pursuant to Section 4(2) of the Securities Act of
1933, as amended (the “Securities Act”), and Rule 506 promulgated thereunder, the Company desires to issue and sell to the Purchaser, and
the Purchaser desires to purchase from the Company, securities of the Company as more fully described in this Agreement.
NOW, THEREFORE, IN CONSIDERATION of the mutual covenants contained in this Agreement, and for other good and
valuable consideration, the receipt and adequacy of which are hereby acknowledged, the Company and each Purchaser agree as follows:
ARTICLE I.
DEFINITIONS
1.1. Definitions. In addition to the terms defined elsewhere in this Agreement: (a) capitalized terms that are not otherwise defined
herein have the meanings given to such terms in the Debentures (as defined herein), and (b) the following terms have the meanings set
forth in this Section 1.1:
“Acquiring Person” shall have the meaning ascribed to such term in Section 4.7.
“Action” shall have the meaning ascribed to such term in Section 3.1(j).
“Affiliate” means any Person that, directly or indirectly through one or more intermediary, controls or is controlled by or is under
common control with a Person, as such terms are used in and construed under Rule 405 under the Securities Act.
“Board of Directors” means the board of directors of the Company.
“Business Day” means any day except Saturday, Sunday, any day which is a federal legal holiday in the United States or any day
on which banking institutions in the State of New York are authorized or required by law or other governmental action to close.
“Closing” means the closing of the purchase and sale of the Debentures pursuant to Section 2.1.
“Closing Date” means the Trading Day when all of the Transaction Documents have been executed and delivered by the
applicable parties thereto, and all conditions precedent to (i) the Purchaser’s obligations to pay the Subscription Amount and (ii) the
Company’s obligations to deliver the Debentures have been satisfied or waived.
“Closing Statement” means the Closing Statement in the form Annex A attached hereto.
“Commission” means the United States Securities and Exchange Commission.
“Common Stock” means the common stock of the Company, par value$.001 per share, and any other class of securities into which
such securities may hereafter be reclassified or changed into.

“Common Stock Equivalents” means any securities of the Company or the Subsidiaries which would entitle the holder thereof to
acquire at any time Common Stock, including, without limitation, any debt, preferred stock, rights, options, warrants or other instrument
that is at any time convertible into or exercisable or exchangeable for, or otherwise entitles the holder thereof to receive Common Stock.
“Company” means Pressure BioSciences, Inc
“Company Counsel” means Lucosky Brookman LLP
“Conversion Price” shall have the meaning ascribed to such term in the Debentures.
“Debentures” means the Original Issue Discount Convertible Debentures due, subject to the terms therein, twelve months from the
Closing Date, issued by the Company to the Purchaser hereunder, in the form of Exhibit A attached hereto.
“Disclosure Schedules” shall have the meaning ascribed to such term in Section 3.1.
“Exchange Act” means the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and the rules and regulations promulgated thereunder.
“GAAP” shall have the meaning ascribed to such term in Section 3.1(h).
“Indebtedness” shall have the meaning ascribed to such term in Section 3.1(gg).
“Intellectual Property Rights” shall have the meaning ascribed to such term in Section 3.1(o).
“Legend Removal Date” shall have the meaning ascribed to such term in Section 4.1(c).
“Liens” means a lien, charge, security interest, encumbrance, right of first refusal, preemptive right or other restriction.
“Material Adverse Effect” shall have the meaning assigned to such term in Section 3.1(b).
“Material Permits” shall have the meaning ascribed to such term in Section 3.1(m).
“Maximum Rate” shall have the meaning ascribed to such term in Section 5.17.
“Person” means an individual or corporation, partnership, trust, incorporated or unincorporated association, joint venture, limited
liability company, joint stock company, government (or an agency or subdivision thereof) or other entity of any kind.
“Proceeding” means an action, claim, suit, investigation or proceeding (including, without limitation, an informal investigation or
partial proceeding, such as a deposition), whether commenced or threatened.
“Purchaser Party” shall have the meaning ascribed to such term in Section 4.10.
“Required Approvals” shall have the meaning ascribed to such term in Section 3.1(e).

“Required Minimum” means, as of any date, the maximum aggregate number of shares of Common Stock then issued or
potentially issuable in the future pursuant to the Transaction Documents, including any Underlying Shares issuable upon conversion in full
of the Debentures (including Underlying Shares issuable as payment of interest on the Debentures), ignoring any conversion or exercise
limits set forth therein multiplied by three.
“Rule 144” means Rule 144 promulgated by the Commission pursuant to the Securities Act, as such Rule may be amended from
time to time, or any similar rule or regulation hereafter adopted by the Commission having substantially the same effect as such Rule.
“SEC Reports” shall have the meaning ascribed to such term in Section 3.1(h).
“Securities” means the Debentures, the Underlying Shares and the Common Stock issued to the Purchaser pursuant to this
Agreement.
“Securities Act” means the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, and the rules and regulations promulgated thereunder.
“Short Sales” means all “short sales” as defined in Rule 200 of Regulation SHO under the Exchange Act (but shall not be deemed
to include the location and/or reservation of borrowable shares of Common Stock).
“Subscription Amount” means the aggregate amount to be paid for the Debentures purchased hereunder as specified below the
Purchaser’s name on the signature page of this Agreement and next to the heading “Subscription Amount,” in United States dollars and in
immediately available funds.
“Subsidiary” means with respect to any entity at any date, any direct or indirect corporation, limited or general partnership, limited
liability company, trust, estate, association, joint venture or other business entity of which (A) more than 30% of (i) the outstanding capital
stock having (in the absence of contingencies) ordinary voting power to elect a majority of the board of directors or other managing body
of such entity, (ii) in the case of a partnership or limited liability company, the interest in the capital or profits of such partnership or limited
liability company or (iii) in the case of a trust, estate, association, joint venture or other entity, the beneficial interest in such trust, estate,
association or other entity business is, at the time of determination, owned or controlled directly or indirectly through one or more
intermediaries, by such entity, or (B) is under the actual control of the Company.
“Trading Day” means a day on which the principal Trading Market is open for trading.
“Trading Market” means the following markets or exchanges on which the Common Stock is listed or quoted for trading on the
date in question: the NYSE MKT, LLC, the Nasdaq Capital Market, the Nasdaq Global Market, the Nasdaq Global Select Market, the
New York Stock Exchange, or the OTCQB maintained by the OTC Markets Group, Inc.
“Transaction Documents” means this Agreement, the Debentures, all exhibits and schedules thereto and hereto and any other
documents or agreements executed in connection with the transactions contemplated hereunder.
“Transfer Agent” means Computershare and a telephone number of (303) 262-0617 (Kathy Heagerty) and any successor transfer
agent of the Company.
“Underlying Shares” means the shares of Common Stock issued and issuable upon conversion or redemption of the Debentures
and issued and issuable in lieu of the cash payment of interest on the Debentures in accordance with the terms of the Debentures.

“VWAP” means, for any date, the price determined by the first of the following clauses that applies: (a) if the Common Stock is
then listed or quoted on a Trading Market, the daily volume weighted average price of the Common Stock for such date (or the nearest
preceding date) on the Trading Market on which the Common Stock is then listed or quoted as reported by Bloomberg L.P. (based on a
Trading Day from 9:30 a.m. New York City time to 4:02 p.m. New York City time); (b) if the Common Stock is not quoted on a Trading
Market but is quoted on the OTC Pink , the most recent bid price per share of the Common Stock for such date (or the nearest preceding
date) on the OTC Pink as then listed or quoted for trading by OTC Markets Group, Inc. (or a similar organization or agency succeeding to
its functions of reporting prices), or (c) in all other cases, the fair market value of a share of Common Stock as determined by an
independent appraiser selected in good faith by the Purchaser and reasonably acceptable to the Company, the fees and expenses of which
shall be paid by the Company.
ARTICLE II.
PURCHASE AND SALE
2.1 Closing. On the Closing Date, upon the terms and subject to the conditions set forth herein, substantially concurrent with the
execution and delivery of this Agreement by the parties hereto, the Company agrees to sell, and the Purchaser agrees to purchase, for a
purchase price of an aggregate of up to $450,000, an aggregate of up to $500,000 in principal amount of the Notes. The Notes will be
funded as follows:

Funding Schedule
On the date of this Agreement
(i)Provided there has not been a Material Adverse Effect;
(ii) provided the Company is not in breach of this Agreement or the Debenture; and
(iii) upon request by the Company which request shall be no earlier than 30 days after the date
hereof and no later than 45 days from the date hereof (the “Subsequent Funding”)

$

Amount
of Note
250,000

$

250,000

Purchase Price
(10% Original
Issue Discount)
$
225,000*

$

225,000

Does not reflect $10,000 which is being paid for Purchaser’s legal fees related to this transaction.
The Purchaser shall deliver to the Company, via wire transfer, immediately available funds equal to its Subscription Amount and
the Company shall deliver to the Purchaser its Note, as set forth in Section 2.2, and the Company and the Purchaser shall deliver the other
items set forth in Section 2.2 deliverable at the Closing. Upon satisfaction of the conditions set forth in Sections 2.2 and 2.3, the initial
Closing shall occur at the offices of Sichenzia Ross Ference Kesner LLP or such other location as the parties shall mutually agree. In the
event that there is a Material Adverse Effect or the Company is in breach of this Agreement or the Debenture the Purchaser will not be
required to make the Subsequent Funding. For avoidance of doubt the Purchaser will not obligated to make the Subsequent Funding if there
is a Material Adverse Effect, the Company is in breach or default of this Agreement or the Debenture or it is more than 45 days from the
date hereof.

As set forth below, within five (5) business days of the Closing for each Debenture, the Company shall issue the Purchaser 250,000 shares
of its Common Stock.
2.2 Deliveries.
(a) On or prior to the initial Closing Date, the Company shall deliver or cause to be delivered to Purchaser the following:
(i) this Agreement duly executed by the Company;
(ii) an originally executed Note registered in the name of Purchaser in the principal amount of $250,000;
(iii) an irrevocable instruction letter executed by the Company and the Company’s transfer agent for the
issuance of a book entry for 250,000 shares of the Company’s Common Stock issued in Purchaser’s name; and
(iv) an irrevocable transfer agent letter to reserve the amount of shares issuable upon conversion of the
Debenture which letter shall be in a form reasonably acceptable to the Purchaser
(b) On or prior to the Closing Date, Purchaser shall deliver or cause to be delivered to the Company the following:
(i) this Agreement duly executed by such Purchaser; and
(ii) $220,000 representing the purchase price after the deduction of $5,000 for the Purchaser’s legal expenses of
the first Note subject to the closing by wire transfer pursuant to the wire instructions provided by the Company to the Purchaser.
(c) On the subsequent Closing Date (if any) the Company shall deliver or cause to be delivered to Purchaser the
following:
(i) an originally executed Note registered in the name of such Purchaser in the principal amount that corresponds
to the schedule set forth above;
(ii) an irrevocable instruction letter executed by the Company and the Company’s transfer agent for the issuance
of a book entry for 250,000 shares of the Company’s Common Stock issued in Purchaser’s name; and
(iii) a certificate duly executed by the Company’s chief executive officer in a form that is acceptable to the
Purchaser.
In addition, within five business days of the subsequent Closing Date, a stock certificate issued to Purchaser for
250,000 shares of the Company’s Common Stock.

(d) On each subsequent Closing Date, the Purchaser shall deliver (by wire transfer pursuant to wire instructions provided
by the Company to the Purchaser) to the applicable purchase price for the amount of the Note being funded according to the schedule
above.
2.3 Closing Conditions.
(a) The obligations of the Company hereunder in connection with the closing are subject to the following conditions
being met:
(i) the accuracy in all material respects (or, to the extent representations or warranties are qualified by
materiality or Material Adverse Effect, in all respects) when made and on a Closing Date of the representations and warranties of the
Purchaser contained herein (unless as of a specific date therein in which case they shall be accurate as of such date);
(ii) all obligations, covenants and agreements of Purchaser required to be performed at or prior to a Closing Date
shall have been performed; and
(iii) the delivery by Purchaser of the items set forth in Section 2.2 of this Agreement.
(b) The obligation of the Purchaser hereunder in connection with the closing are subject to the following conditions being
met:
(i) the accuracy in all material respects (or, to the extent representations or warranties are qualified by
materiality or Material Adverse Effect, in all respects) when made and on a Closing Date of the representations and warranties of the
Company contained herein (unless as of a specific date therein in which case they shall be accurate as of such date);
(ii) all obligations, covenants and agreements of the Company required to be performed at or prior to an
applicable Closing Date shall have been performed;
(iii) the delivery by the Company of the items set forth in Section 2.2(a) of this Agreement;
(iv) there shall have been no Material Adverse Effect with respect to the Company since the date hereof and the
Company shall not be in breach of any Transaction Document; and
(v) from the date hereof to a Closing Date, trading in the Common Stock shall not have been suspended by the
SEC or the Company’s principal Trading Market, and, at any time prior to a Closing Date, trading in securities generally as reported by
Bloomberg L.P. shall not have been suspended or limited, or minimum prices shall not have been established on securities whose trades
are reported by such service, or on any Trading Market, nor shall a banking moratorium have been declared either by the United States or
New York State authorities nor shall there have occurred any material outbreak or escalation of hostilities or other national or international
calamity of such magnitude in its effect on, or any material adverse change in, any financial market which, in each case, in the reasonable
judgment of the Purchaser, makes it impracticable or inadvisable to purchase the Securities at on the Closing Date.

ARTICLE III.
REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES
3.1 Representations and Warranties of the Company . Except as set forth in the Disclosure Schedules, which Disclosure Schedules
shall be deemed a part hereof and shall qualify any representation or otherwise made herein to the extent of the disclosure contained in the
corresponding section of the Disclosure Schedules, the Company hereby makes the following representations and warranties to each
Purchaser:
(a) Subsidiaries. The Company owns, directly or indirectly, the capital stock or other equity interests of each Subsidiary,
in the amounts set forth on Schedule 3.1(a), free and clear of any Liens, and all of the issued and outstanding shares of capital stock of each
Subsidiary are validly issued and are fully paid, non-assessable and free of preemptive and similar rights to subscribe for or purchase
securities. If the Company has no Subsidiaries, all other references to the Subsidiaries in the Transaction Documents shall be disregarded.
(b) Organization and Qualification. The Company and each of the Subsidiaries is an entity duly incorporated or otherwise
organized, validly existing and in good standing under the laws of the jurisdiction of its incorporation or organization, with the requisite
power and authority to own and use its properties and assets and to carry on its business as currently conducted. Neither the Company nor
any Subsidiary is in violation nor default of any of the provisions of its respective certificate or articles of incorporation, bylaws or other
organizational or charter documents. Each of the Company and the Subsidiaries is duly qualified to conduct business and is in good
standing as a foreign corporation or other entity in each jurisdiction in which the nature of the business conducted or property owned by it
makes such qualification necessary, except where the failure to be so qualified or in good standing, as the case may be, could not have or
reasonably be expected to result in: (i) a material adverse effect on the legality, validity or enforceability of any Transaction Document, (ii)
a material adverse effect on the results of operations, assets, business, prospects or condition (financial or otherwise) of the Company and
the Subsidiaries, taken as a whole, or (iii) a material adverse effect on the Company’s ability to perform in any material respect on a timely
basis its obligations under any Transaction Document (any of (i), (ii) or (iii), a “Material Adverse Effect ”) and no Proceeding has been
instituted in any such jurisdiction revoking, limiting or curtailing or seeking to revoke, limit or curtail such power and authority or
qualification.
(c) Authorization; Enforcement. The Company has the requisite corporate power and authority to enter into and to
consummate the transactions contemplated by each of the Transaction Documents and otherwise to carry out its obligations hereunder and
thereunder. The execution and delivery of each of the Transaction Documents by the Company and the consummation by it of the
transactions contemplated hereby and thereby have been duly authorized by all necessary action on the part of the Company and no further
action is required by the Company, the Board of Directors or the Company’s stockholders in connection therewith other than in connection
with the Required Approvals. Each Transaction Document to which it is a party has been (or upon delivery will have been) duly executed
by the Company and, when delivered in accordance with the terms hereof and thereof, will constitute the valid and binding obligation of
the Company enforceable against the Company in accordance with its terms, except: (i) as limited by general equitable principles and
applicable bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, moratorium and other laws of general application affecting enforcement of creditors’
rights generally, (ii) as limited by laws relating to the availability of specific performance, injunctive relief or other equitable remedies and
(iii) insofar as indemnification and contribution provisions may be limited by applicable law.

(d) No Conflicts. The execution, delivery and performance by the Company of the Transaction Documents and the
consummation by it to which it is a party of the other transactions contemplated hereby and thereby do not and will not: (i) conflict with or
violate any provision of the Company’s or any Subsidiary’s certificate or articles of incorporation, bylaws or other organizational or charter
documents, (ii) conflict with, or constitute a default (or an event that with notice or lapse of time or both would become a default) under,
result in the creation of any Lien upon any of the properties or assets of the Company or any Subsidiary, or give to others any rights of
termination, amendment, acceleration or cancellation (with or without notice, lapse of time or both) of, any agreement, credit facility, debt
or other instrument (evidencing a Company or Subsidiary debt or otherwise) or other understanding to which the Company or any
Subsidiary is a party or by which any property or asset of the Company or any Subsidiary is bound or affected, or (iii) subject to the
Required Approvals, conflict with or result in a violation of any law, rule, regulation, order, judgment, injunction, decree or other
restriction of any court or governmental authority to which the Company or a Subsidiary is subject (including federal and state securities
laws and regulations), or by which any property or asset of the Company or a Subsidiary is bound or affected; except in the case of each of
clauses (ii) and (iii), such as could not have or reasonably be expected to result in a Material Adverse Effect.
(e) Filings, Consents and Approvals. The Company is not required to obtain any consent, waiver, authorization or order
of, give any notice to, or make any filing or registration with, any court or other federal, state, local or other governmental authority or other
Person in connection with the execution, delivery and performance by the Company of the Transaction Documents, other than: (i) the
filings required pursuant to Section 4.6 and (ii) the filing of Form D with the Commission and such filings as are required to be made under
applicable state securities laws (collectively, the “Required Approvals”).
( f ) Issuance of the Securities. The issuance of the Debentures and Common Stock being issued pursuant to this
Agreement have been duly authorized and, when issued and paid for in accordance with the applicable Transaction Documents, and have
been duly and validly issued, fully paid and nonassessable, free and clear of all Liens imposed by the Company other than restrictions on
transfer provided for in the Transaction Documents. The Underlying Shares, when issued in accordance with the terms of the Transaction
Documents, will be validly issued, fully paid and nonassessable, free and clear of all Liens imposed by the Company other than restrictions
on transfer provided for in the Transaction Documents. The Company has reserved the Required Minimum for issuance of the Underlying
Shares.
(g) Capitalization. Except as provided in Schedule 3.1(g), the capitalization of the Company immediately prior to Closing
is, in all material respects, as set forth in the SEC Reports. Except as provided in Schedule 3.1(g), no Person has (i) any right of first refusal,
preemptive right, right of participation, or any similar right to participate in the transactions contemplated by the Transaction Documents
except for such, if any, as will have been validly waived before the Closing and (ii) except pursuant to the operation of agreements filed as
exhibits to the SEC Reports before the date of this Agreement, the issuance and sale of the Securities will not obligate the Company to
issue shares of Common Stock or other securities to any Person (other than the Purchaser) and will not result in a right of any holder of
Company securities to adjust the exercise, conversion, exchange or reset price under any of such securities. All of the outstanding shares of
capital stock of the Company are validly issued, fully paid and nonassessable, have been issued in compliance with all federal and state
securities laws, and none of such outstanding shares was issued in violation of any preemptive rights or similar rights to subscribe for or
purchase securities. No further approval or authorization of any stockholder, the Board of Directors or others is required for the issuance
and sale of the Securities. Except as filed as exhibits to the SEC Reports, there are no stockholders agreements, voting agreements or other
similar agreements with respect to the Company’s capital stock to which the Company is a party or, to the knowledge of the Company,
between or among any of the Company’s stockholders.

(h) SEC Reports; Financial Statements . The Company has filed all quarterly reports on Form 10-Q and all annual reports
on Form 10-Krequired to be filed by the Company under Section 13 or 15(d) of the Exchange Act for the two years preceding the date
hereof (or such shorter period as the Company was required by law or regulation to file such material) (the foregoing materials, in addition
to all schedules, forms, statements and other documents filed with the Commission for the two years preceding the date hereof, including
the exhibits thereto and documents incorporated by reference therein, being collectively referred to herein as the “SEC Reports”) on a
timely basis or has received a valid extension of such time of filing and has filed any such SEC Reports prior to the expiration of any such
extension. As of their respective dates, the SEC Reports complied in all material respects with the requirements of the Securities Act and
the Exchange Act, as applicable, and none of the SEC Reports, when filed, contained any untrue statement of a material fact or omitted to
state a material fact required to be stated therein or necessary in order to make the statements therein, in the light of the circumstances under
which they were made, not misleading. The financial statements of the Company included in the SEC Reports comply in all material
respects with applicable accounting requirements and the rules and regulations of the Commission with respect thereto as in effect at the
time of filing. Such financial statements have been prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles (“GAAP”), except
as may be otherwise specified in such financial statements or the notes thereto and except that unaudited financial statements may not
contain all footnotes required by GAAP, and fairly present in all material respects the financial position of the Company and its
consolidated Subsidiaries as of and for the dates thereof and the results of operations and cash flows for the periods then ended, subject, in
the case of unaudited statements, to normal, immaterial, year-end audit adjustments.
(i) Material Changes. Except as provided in Schedule 3.1(i), since the date of the latest financial statements included in
the SEC Reports: (i) there has been no event, occurrence or development that has had or that could reasonably be expected to result in a
Material Adverse Effect, (ii) the Company has not incurred any liabilities (contingent or otherwise) other than (A) trade payables and
accrued expenses incurred in the ordinary course of business consistent with past practice and (B) liabilities not required to be reflected in
the Company’s financial statements pursuant to GAAP or disclosed in filings made with the Commission, (iii) the Company has not altered
its method of accounting, (iv) the Company has not declared or made any dividend or distribution of cash or other property to its
stockholders or purchased, redeemed or made any agreements to purchase or redeem any shares of its capital stock and (v) the Company
has not issued any equity securities to any officer, director or Affiliate, except pursuant to existing Company equity incentive plans. The
Company does not have pending before the Commission any request for confidential treatment of information. Except for the issuance of
the Securities contemplated by this Agreement, no event, liability or development has occurred or exists with respect to the Company or its
Subsidiaries or their respective business, properties, operations or financial condition, that would be required to be disclosed by the
Company under applicable securities laws at the time this representation is made or deemed made that has not been publicly disclosed at
least one Trading Day prior to the date that this representation is made.
(j) Litigation. There is no action, suit, inquiry, notice of violation, proceeding or investigation pending or, to the
knowledge of the Company, threatened against or affecting the Company, any Subsidiary or any of their respective properties before or by
any court, arbitrator, governmental or administrative agency or regulatory authority (federal, state, county, local or foreign) (collectively, an
“Action”) which (i) adversely affects or challenges the legality, validity or enforceability of any of the Transaction Documents or the
Securities or (ii) could, if there were an unfavorable decision, have or reasonably be expected to result in a Material Adverse Effect. Neither
the Company nor any Subsidiary, nor any director or officer thereof, is or has been the subject of any Action involving a claim of violation
of or liability under federal or state securities laws or a claim of breach of fiduciary duty. There has not been, and to the knowledge of the
Company, there is not pending or contemplated, any investigation by the Commission involving the Company or any current or former
director or officer of the Company. The Commission has not issued any stop order or other order suspending the effectiveness of any
registration statement filed by the Company or any Subsidiary under the Exchange Act or the Securities Act.

(k) Labor Relations. No material labor dispute exists or, to the knowledge of the Company, is imminent with respect to
any of the employees of the Company which could reasonably be expected to result in a Material Adverse Effect. None of the Company’s
or its Subsidiaries’ employees is a member of a union that relates to such employee’s relationship with the Company or such Subsidiary,
and neither the Company nor any of its Subsidiaries is a party to a collective bargaining agreement, and the Company and its Subsidiaries
believe that their relationships with their employees are good. No executive officer, to the knowledge of the Company, is, or is now
expected to be, in violation of any material term of any employment contract, confidentiality, disclosure or proprietary information
agreement or non-competition agreement, or any other contract or agreement or any restrictive covenant in favor of any third party, and the
continued employment of each such executive officer does not subject the Company or any of its Subsidiaries to any liability with respect to
any of the foregoing matters. To the Company’s knowledge, the Company and its Subsidiaries are in compliance with all U.S. federal, state,
local and foreign laws and regulations relating to employment and employment practices, terms and conditions of employment and wages
and hours, except where the failure to be in compliance could not, individually or in the aggregate, reasonably be expected to have a
Material Adverse Effect.
(l) Compliance. Neither the Company nor any Subsidiary: (i) is in default under or in violation of (and no event has
occurred that has not been waived that, with notice or lapse of time or both, would result in a default by the Company or any Subsidiary
under), nor has the Company or any Subsidiary received notice of a claim that it is in default under or that it is in violation of, any
indenture, loan or credit agreement or any other material agreement or instrument to which it is a party or by which it or any of its
properties is bound (whether or not such default or violation has been waived), (ii) is in violation of any order of any court, arbitrator or
governmental body or (iii) is or has been in violation of any statute, rule or regulation of any governmental authority, including without
limitation all foreign, federal, state and local laws applicable to its business and all such laws that affect the environment, except in each of
the foregoing cases as could not have or reasonably be expected to result in a Material Adverse Effect.
(m) Regulatory Permits. The Company and the Subsidiaries possess all certificates, authorizations and permits issued by
the appropriate federal, state, local or foreign regulatory authorities necessary to conduct their respective businesses, except where the
failure to possess such permits could not reasonably be expected to result in a Material Adverse Effect (“Material Permits”), and neither the
Company nor any Subsidiary has received any notice of proceedings relating to the revocation or modification of any Material Permit.
(n) Title to Assets. The Company and the Subsidiaries have good and marketable title in fee simple to all real property
and good and marketable title in all personal property owned by it that, in each case, is material to the business of the Company and the
Subsidiaries, in each case free and clear of all Liens, except for Liens as do not materially affect the value of such property and do not
materially interfere with the use made and proposed to be made of such property by the Company and the Subsidiaries and Liens for the
payment of federal, state or other taxes, the payment of which is neither delinquent nor subject to penalties in any material respect. Any real
property and facilities held under lease by the Company and the Subsidiaries are held by them under valid, subsisting and enforceable
leases with which the Company and the Subsidiaries are in compliance.

(o) Patents and Trademarks. To the Company’s knowledge (without having conducted any independent investigation): (i)
the Company and the Subsidiaries have, or have rights to use, all patents, patent applications, trademarks, trademark applications, service
marks, trade names, trade secrets, inventions, copyrights, licenses and other intellectual property rights and similar rights as described in the
SEC Reports as necessary or material for use in connection with their respective businesses and which the failure to so have could
reasonably be expected to have a Material Adverse Effect (collectively, the “ Intellectual Property Rights”); (ii) neither the Company nor
any Subsidiary has received a notice (written or otherwise) that any of the Intellectual Property Rights violates or infringes upon the rights
of any Person; (iii) all such Intellectual Property Rights are enforceable and there is no existing infringement by another Person of any of
the Intellectual Property Rights, except where the failure to be so enforceable or for such infringements as would not, individually or in the
aggregate, reasonably be expected to have a Material Adverse Effect; and (iv) the Company and its Subsidiaries have taken reasonable
security measures to protect the secrecy, confidentiality and value of all of their intellectual properties, except where failure to do so could
not, individually or in the aggregate, reasonably be expected to have a Material Adverse Effect.
(p) Transactions with Affiliates and Employees. Except as set forth in the SEC Reports, none of the officers or directors of
the Company and, to the knowledge of the Company, none of the employees of the Company is presently a party to any transaction with
the Company or any Subsidiary (other than for services as employees, officers and directors), including any contract, agreement or other
arrangement providing for the furnishing of services to or by, providing for rental of real or personal property to or from, or otherwise
requiring payments to or from any officer, director or such employee or, to the knowledge of the Company, any entity in which any officer,
director, or any such employee has a substantial interest or is an officer, director, trustee or partner, in each case in excess of $120,000 other
than for: (i) payment of salary or consulting fees for services rendered, (ii) reimbursement for expenses incurred on behalf of the Company
and (iii) other employee benefits, including stock option agreements under any stock option plan of the Company.
(q) Environmental Laws. The Company and its subsidiaries are (i) in compliance with any and all applicable foreign,
federal, state and local laws and regulations relating to the protection of human health and safety, the environment or hazardous or toxic
substances or wastes, pollutants or contaminants (“Environmental Laws”), (ii) have received all permits, licenses or other approvals
required of them under applicable Environmental Laws to conduct their respective businesses and (iii) are in compliance with all terms and
conditions of any such permit, license or approval, except in each of the above cases where noncompliance could not be reasonably
expected to have a Material Adverse Effect.
(r) Sarbanes-Oxley; Internal Accounting Controls. Except as set forth in the SEC Reports, the Company is in material
compliance with all provisions of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 which are applicable to it as of the Closing Date. The Company and the
Subsidiaries maintain a system of internal accounting controls sufficient to provide reasonable assurance that: (i) transactions are executed
in accordance with management’s general or specific authorizations, (ii) transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
financial statements in conformity with GAAP and to maintain asset accountability, (iii) access to assets is permitted only in accordance
with management’s general or specific authorization, and (iv) the recorded accountability for assets is compared with the existing assets at
reasonable intervals and appropriate action is taken with respect to any differences. The Company has established disclosure controls and
procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) for the Company and designed such disclosure controls and
procedures to ensure that information required to be disclosed by the Company in the reports it files or submits under the Exchange Act is
recorded, processed, summarized and reported, within the time periods specified in the Commission’s rules and forms. The Company’s
certifying officers have evaluated the effectiveness of the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures as of the end of the period
covered by the Company’s most recently filed periodic report under the Exchange Act (such date, the “ Evaluation Date”). The Company
presented in its most recently filed periodic report under the Exchange Act the conclusions of the certifying officers about the effectiveness
of the disclosure controls and procedures based on their evaluations as of the Evaluation Date. Since the Evaluation Date, there have been
no changes in the Company’s internal control over financial reporting (as such term is defined in the Exchange Act) that has materially
affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the Company’s internal control over financial reporting.

(s) Certain Fees. No brokerage or finder’s fees or commissions are or will be payable by the Company to any broker,
financial advisor or consultant, finder, placement agent, investment banker, bank or other Person with respect to the transactions
contemplated by the Transaction Documents,. The Purchaser shall have no obligation with respect to any fees or with respect to any claims
made by or on behalf of other Persons for fees of a type contemplated in this Section that may be due in connection with the transactions
contemplated by the Transaction Documents.
(t) Private Placement. Assuming the accuracy of the Purchaser’s representations and warranties set forth in Section 3.2,
no registration under the Securities Act is required for the offer and sale of the Debentures by the Company to the Purchaser as
contemplated hereby. The issuance and sale of the Debentures hereunder does not contravene the rules and regulations of the Trading
Market.
(u) Investment Company. The Company is not, and is not an Affiliate of, and immediately after receipt of payment for the
Securities, will not be or be an Affiliate of, an “investment company” within the meaning of the Investment Company Act of 1940, as
amended. The Company shall conduct its business in a manner so that it will not become subject to the Investment Company Act of 1940,
as amended.
(v) Registration Rights. No Person has any right to cause the Company to effect the registration under the Securities Act
of any securities of the Company.
(w) Listing and Maintenance Requirements. The Common Stock is registered pursuant to Section 12(b) or 12(g) of the
Exchange Act, and the Company has taken no action designed to, or which to its knowledge is likely to have the effect of, terminating the
registration of the Common Stock under the Exchange Act nor has the Company received any notification that the Commission is
contemplating terminating such registration. The Company has not, in the 12 months preceding the date hereof, received notice from any
Trading Market on which the Common Stock is or has been listed or quoted to the effect that the Company is not in compliance with the
listing or maintenance requirements of such Trading Market. The Company is, and has no reason to believe that it will not in the
foreseeable future continue to be, in compliance with all such listing and maintenance requirements.
(x) Application of Takeover Protections. The Company and the Board of Directors have taken all necessary action, if any,
in order to render inapplicable any control share acquisition, business combination, poison pill (including any distribution under a rights
agreement) or other similar anti-takeover provision under the Company’s certificate of incorporation (or similar charter documents) or the
laws of its state of incorporation that is or could become applicable to the Purchaser as a result of the Purchaser and the Company fulfilling
their obligations or exercising their rights under the Transaction Documents, including without limitation as a result of the Company’s
issuance of the Securities and the Purchaser’s ownership of the Securities.

(y) Disclosure. Except with respect to (i) the material terms and conditions of the transactions contemplated by the
Transaction Documents and (ii) information given to the Investor, if any, which the Company hereby confirms will not constitute material
non-public information six months from the date hereof, the Company confirms that neither it nor any other Person acting on its behalf has
provided the Purchaser or their agents or counsel with any information that it believes constitutes or might constitute material, nonpublic
information. The Company understands and confirms that the Purchaser will rely on the foregoing representation in effecting transactions
in securities of the Company. All disclosure furnished in writing by or on behalf of the Company to the Purchaser regarding the Company,
its business and the transactions contemplated hereby, including the Disclosure Schedules to this Agreement, is true and correct and does
not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state any material fact necessary in order to make the statements made therein,
in light of the circumstances under which they were made, not misleading. The press releases disseminated by the Company during the
twelve months preceding the date of this Agreement taken as a whole do not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state
a material fact required to be stated therein or necessary in order to make the statements therein, in light of the circumstances under which
they were made and when made, not misleading.
The Company acknowledges and agrees that the Purchaser has not made any representations or warranties with respect to the transactions
contemplated hereby other than those specifically set forth in Section 3.2 hereof.
(z) No Integrated Offering. Assuming the accuracy of the Purchaser’s representations and warranties set forth in Section
3.2, neither the Company, nor any of its Affiliates, nor any Person acting on its or their behalf has, directly or indirectly, made any offers or
sales of any security or solicited any offers to buy any security, under circumstances that would cause this offering of the Securities to be
integrated with prior offerings by the Company for purposes of the Securities Act which would require the registration of any such
securities under the Securities Act.
(aa) Tax Status. Except for matters that would not, individually or in the aggregate, have or reasonably be expected to
result in a Material Adverse Effect, the Company and each Subsidiary has filed all necessary federal, state and foreign income and franchise
tax returns and has paid or accrued all taxes shown as due thereon, and the Company has no knowledge of a tax deficiency which has been
asserted or threatened against the Company or any Subsidiary.
(bb) No General Solicitation. Neither the Company nor any person acting on behalf of the Company has offered or sold
any of the Securities by any form of general solicitation or general advertising. The Company has offered the Securities for sale only to the
Purchaser and certain other “accredited investors” within the meaning of Rule 501 under the Securities Act.
(cc) Foreign Corrupt Practices. Neither the Company, nor to the knowledge of the Company, any agent or other person
acting on behalf of the Company, has: (i) directly or indirectly, used any funds for unlawful contributions, gifts, entertainment or other
unlawful expenses related to foreign or domestic political activity, (ii) made any unlawful payment to foreign or domestic government
officials or employees or to any foreign or domestic political parties or campaigns from corporate funds, (iii) failed to disclose fully any
contribution made by the Company (or made by any person acting on its behalf of which the Company is aware) which is in violation of
law or (iv) violated in any material respect any provision of the Foreign Corrupt Practices Act of 1977, as amended.
(dd) No Disagreements with Accountants and Lawyers; Outstanding SEC Comments. There are no disagreements of any
kind presently existing, or reasonably anticipated by the Company to arise, between the Company and the accountants and lawyers
formerly or presently employed by the Company and the Company is or immediately after the Closing Date will be current with respect to
any fees owed to its accountants which could affect the Company’s ability to perform any of its obligations under any of the Transaction
Documents. There are no unresolved comments or inquiries received by the Company or its Affiliates from the Commission which remain
unresolved as of the date hereof.

(ee) Acknowledgment Regarding Purchaser’s Purchase of Securities. The Company acknowledges and agrees that the
Purchaser is acting solely in the capacity of an arm’s length purchaser with respect to the Transaction Documents and the transactions
contemplated thereby. The Company further acknowledges that no Purchaser is acting as a financial advisor or fiduciary of the Company
(or in any similar capacity) with respect to the Transaction Documents and the transactions contemplated thereby and any advice given by
the Purchaser or any of their respective representatives or agents in connection with the Transaction Documents and the transactions
contemplated thereby is merely incidental to the Purchaser’s purchase of the Securities. The Company further represents to the Purchaser
that the Company’s decision to enter into this Agreement and the other Transaction Documents has been based solely on the independent
evaluation of the transactions contemplated hereby by the Company and its representatives.
(ff) Disqualification. No executive officer, member of the Board of Directors of the Company or shareholder of the
Company beneficially owning more than 10% of the Company’s securities is currently subject to a Disqualifying Event. For purposes of
this Agreement, “Disqualifying Event” means any conviction, order, judgment, decree, suspension, expulsion, event or other matter set out
in Rule 506(d)(1)(i) through (viii) of Regulation D that is currently in effect or which occurred within the periods set out in Rule 506(d)(1)
(i) through (viii).
(gg) Solvency. Based on the consolidated financial condition of the Company as of the Closing Date, after giving effect
to the receipt by the Company of the proceeds from the sale of the Securities hereunder, (i) the fair saleable value of the Company’s assets
exceeds the amount that will be required to be paid on or in respect of the Company’s existing debts and other liabilities (including known
contingent liabilities) as they mature, (ii) the Company’s assets do not constitute unreasonably small capital to carry on its business as now
conducted and as proposed to be conducted including its capital needs taking into account the particular capital requirements of the business
conducted by the Company, consolidated and projected capital requirements and capital availability thereof, and (iii) the current cash flow
of the Company, together with the proceeds the Company would receive, were it to liquidate all of its assets, after taking into account all
anticipated uses of the cash, would be sufficient to pay all amounts on or in respect of its liabilities when such amounts are required to be
paid. As of the date hereof, the Company has no intention to file for reorganization or liquidation under the bankruptcy or reorganization
laws of any jurisdiction within one year from the Closing Date. Except as provided in Schedule 3.1(gg), the SEC Reports sets forth as of
the date hereof all outstanding secured and unsecured Indebtedness of the Company or any Subsidiary, or for which the Company or any
Subsidiary has commitments. For the purposes of this Agreement, “Indebtedness” means (x) any liabilities for borrowed money or amounts
owed in excess of $10,000 (other than trade accounts payable incurred in the ordinary course of business), (y) all guaranties, endorsements
and other contingent obligations in respect of indebtedness of others, whether or not the same are or should be reflected in the Company’s
consolidated balance sheet (or the notes thereto), except guaranties by endorsement of negotiable instruments for deposit or collection or
similar transactions in the ordinary course of business; and (z) the present value of any lease payments in excess of $10,000 due under
leases required to be capitalized in accordance with GAAP. Neither the Company nor any Subsidiary is in default with respect to any
Indebtedness. On each closing the Notes shall be senior to the Company’s existing debt and there are no existing Liens or security interest
on any of the Company’s assets or any Subsidiary of the Company.

3.2 Representations and Warranties of the Purchaser . The Purchaser hereby represents and warrants as of the date hereof and as of
the Closing Date to the Company as follows:
(a) Organization; Authority . The Purchaser is an entity duly organized, validly existing and in good standing under the
laws of the jurisdiction of its organization with full right, corporate or partnership power and authority to enter into and to consummate the
transactions contemplated by the Transaction Documents and otherwise to carry out its obligations hereunder and thereunder. Each
Transaction Document to which it is a party has been duly executed by the Purchaser, and when delivered by the Purchaser in accordance
with the terms hereof, will constitute the valid and legally binding obligation of the Purchaser, enforceable against it in accordance with its
terms, except: (i) as limited by general equitable principles and applicable bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, moratorium and other
laws of general application affecting enforcement of creditors’ rights generally, (ii) as limited by laws relating to the availability of specific
performance, injunctive relief or other equitable remedies and (iii) insofar as indemnification and contribution provisions may be limited by
applicable law.
(b) Own Account. The Purchaser understands that the Securities are “restricted securities” and have not been registered
under the Securities Act or any applicable state securities law and is acquiring the Securities as principal for its own account and not with a
view to or for distributing or reselling such Securities or any part thereof in violation of the Securities Act or any applicable state securities
law, has no present intention of distributing any of such Securities in violation of the Securities Act or any applicable state securities law
and has no direct or indirect arrangement or understandings with any other persons to distribute or regarding the distribution of such
Securities (this representation and warranty not limiting the Purchaser’s right to sell the Securities pursuant to a registration statement or
otherwise in compliance with applicable federal and state securities laws) in violation of the Securities Act or any applicable state securities
law. The Purchaser is acquiring the Securities hereunder in the ordinary course of its business.
(c) Purchaser Status. At the time the Purchaser was offered the Debentures, it was, and as of the date hereof it is, and on
each date on which it converts any Debentures it will be either: (i) an “accredited investor” as defined in Rule 501(a)(1), (a)(2), (a)(3), (a)
(7) or (a)(8) under the Securities Act or (ii) a “qualified institutional buyer” as defined in Rule 144A(a) under the Securities Act. The
Purchaser is not required to be registered as a broker-dealer under Section 15 of the Exchange Act.
(d) Experience of the Purchaser. The Purchaser, either alone or together with its representatives, has such knowledge,
sophistication and experience in business and financial matters so as to be capable of evaluating the merits and risks of the prospective
investment in the Securities, and has so evaluated the merits and risks of such investment. The Purchaser is able to bear the economic risk
of an investment in the Securities and, at the present time, is able to afford a complete loss of such investment.
(e) General Solicitation. The Purchaser is not purchasing the Securities as a result of any advertisement, article, notice or
other communication regarding the Securities published in any newspaper, magazine or similar media or broadcast over television or radio
or presented at any seminar or any other general solicitation or general advertisement.

ARTICLE IV.
OTHER AGREEMENTS OF THE PARTIES
4.1 Transfer Restrictions.
(a) The Securities may only be disposed of in compliance with state and federal securities laws. In connection with any
transfer of Securities other than pursuant to an effective registration statement or Rule 144, to the Company or in connection with a pledge
as contemplated in Section 4.1(b), the Company may require the transferor thereof to provide to the Company an opinion of counsel
selected by the transferor and reasonably acceptable to the Company, the form and substance of which opinion shall be reasonably
satisfactory to the Company, to the effect that such transfer does not require registration of such transferred Securities under the Securities
Act. As a condition of transfer, any such transferee shall agree in writing to be bound by the terms of this Agreement, including the
representations and warranties made by each Purchaser herein, and shall have the rights of a Purchaser under this Agreement.
(b) The Purchaser agrees to the imprinting, so long as is required by this Section 4.1, of a legend on any of the Securities
in the following form:
[NEITHER] THIS SECURITY [NOR THE SECURITIES INTO WHICH THIS SECURITY IS [CONVERTIBLE]] HAS [NOT] BEEN
REGISTERED WITH THE SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION OR THE SECURITIES COMMISSION OF ANY STATE
IN RELIANCE UPON AN EXEMPTION FROM REGISTRATION UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED (THE
“SECURITIES ACT”), AND, ACCORDINGLY, MAY NOT BE OFFERED OR SOLD EXCEPT PURSUANT TO AN EFFECTIVE
REGISTRATION STATEMENT UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OR PURSUANT TO AN AVAILABLE EXEMPTION FROM, OR
IN A TRANSACTION NOT SUBJECT TO, THE REGISTRATION REQUIREMENTS OF THE SECURITIES ACT AND IN
ACCORDANCE WITH APPLICABLE STATE SECURITIES LAWS AS EVIDENCED BY A LEGAL OPINION OF COUNSEL TO
THE TRANSFEROR TO SUCH EFFECT, THE SUBSTANCE OF WHICH SHALL BE REASONABLY ACCEPTABLE TO THE
COMPANY. THIS SECURITY [AND THE SECURITIES ISSUABLE UPON [CONVERSION] OF THIS SECURITY] MAY BE
PLEDGED IN CONNECTION WITH A BONA FIDE MARGIN ACCOUNT OR OTHER LOAN SECURED BY SUCH SECURITIES.
The Company acknowledges and agrees that the Purchaser may from time to time grant a security interest in some or all of the Securities to
a financial institution that is an “accredited investor” as defined in Rule 501(a) under the Securities Act and who agrees in writing with the
Company to be bound by the provisions of this Agreement and, if required under the terms of such arrangement and subject to compliance
with applicable federal and state securities laws, the Purchaser may transfer secured Securities to the secured parties. Absent special
circumstances, such a transfer would not be subject to approval of the Company and no legal opinion of legal counsel of the secured party
shall be required in connection therewith. At the Purchaser’s expense, the Company will execute and deliver such reasonable
documentation as a secured party of Securities may reasonably request in connection with a pledge or transfer of the Securities.
(c) Certificates evidencing the Underlying Shares (or, if Underlying Shares are issued in uncertificated form, comparable
share notices) shall not contain any legend (including the legend set forth in Section 4.1(b) hereof): (i) while a registration statement
covering the resale of such security is effective under the Securities Act, or (ii) following any sale of such Underlying Shares pursuant to
Rule 144, or (iii) if such Underlying Shares are eligible for sale under Rule 144, without the requirement for the Company to be in
compliance with the current public information required under Rule 144 as to such Underlying Shares and without volume or manner-ofsale restrictions, or (iv) if such legend is not otherwise required under applicable requirements of the Securities Act (including judicial
interpretations and pronouncements issued by the staff of the Commission), as reasonably determined by the Company. Upon the
Purchaser’s request in connection with a proposed sale of Underlying Shares pursuant to Rule 144 and if the Company reasonably
determines it is so required, upon receipt of customary documentation from Purchaser’s broker (if the Underlying Shares are sold in
brokers transactions), the Company shall, at its own cost and effort, retain legal counsel to provide an opinion letter to the Company’s
transfer agent opining that the Underlying Shares may be resold without registration under the Securities Act, pursuant to Rule 144,
promulgated thereunder, so long as the requirements of Rule 144 are met for any Underlying Shares to be resold thereunder. The Company
shall arrange for any such opinion letter to be provided not later than two (2) business days after the date of delivery to and receipt by the
Company of a written request by the Purchaser together with (if required in order to render the opinion) any broker’s representation letter of
other customary documentation reasonably requested by the Company evidencing compliance with Rule 144 (the “Legend Removal
Date”).

(d) In addition to the Purchaser’s other available remedies, the Company shall pay to the Purchaser, in cash, as partial
liquidated damages and not as a penalty, for each $1,000 of Underlying Shares (based on the VWAP of the Common Stock on the date such
Securities are submitted to the Transfer Agent) delivered for removal of the restrictive legend and subject to Section 4.1(c), $10 per Trading
Day for each Trading Day after the Legend Removal Date until such certificate (or, if the Underlying Shares are in uncertificated form, a
comparable notice of share ownership) is delivered without a legend. Nothing herein shall limit the Purchaser’s right to pursue actual
damages for the Company’s failure to deliver certificates representing any Securities as required by the Transaction Documents, and the
Purchaser shall have the right to pursue all remedies available to it at law or in equity including, without limitation, a decree of specific
performance and/or injunctive relief.
(e) The Purchaser agrees that the Purchaser will sell any Securities only pursuant to either an exemption from registration
or a registration statement under the Securities Act, including any applicable prospectus delivery requirements, and that if Securities are
sold pursuant to a registration statement, they will be sold in compliance with the plan of distribution set forth therein, and acknowledges
that the removal of the restrictive legend from certificates representing Securities as set forth in this Section 4.1 is predicated upon the
Company’s reliance upon this understanding.
4.2 Acknowledgment of Dilution. The Company acknowledges that the issuance of the Securities may result in dilution of the
outstanding shares of Common Stock, which dilution may be substantial under certain market conditions. The Company further
acknowledges that its obligations under the Transaction Documents, including, without limitation, its obligation to issue the Underlying
Shares pursuant to the Transaction Documents, are unconditional and absolute and not subject to any right of set off, counterclaim, delay or
reduction, regardless of the effect of any such dilution or any claim the Company may have against the Purchaser and regardless of the
dilutive effect that such issuance may have on the ownership of the other stockholders of the Company.
4.3 Furnishing of Information. Until the earlier to occur of the time that (i) the Purchaser owns no Securities, or (ii) 18 months
from the date hereof, the Company covenants that it will maintain the registration of the Common Stock under Section 12(b) or 12(g) of
the Exchange Act and to use all commercially reasonable efforts to timely file (or obtain extensions in respect thereof and file within the
applicable grace period) all reports required to be filed by the Company after the date hereof pursuant to the Exchange Act. As long as the
Purchaser owns Securities, if the Company is not required to file reports pursuant to the Exchange Act, it will prepare and furnish to the
Purchaser and make publicly available in accordance with Rule 144(c) such information as is required for the Purchaser to sell the
Securities under Rule 144. The Company further covenants that it will use all commercially reasonable efforts to take such further action as
any holder of Securities may reasonably request, to the extent required from time to time to enable such Person to sell such Securities
without registration under the Securities Act within the requirements of the exemption provided by Rule 144.
4.4 Integration. The Company shall not sell, offer for sale or solicit offers to buy or otherwise negotiate in respect of any security
(as defined in Section 2 of the Securities Act) that would be integrated with the offer or sale of the Securities to the Purchaser in a manner
that would require the registration under the Securities Act of the sale of the Securities to the Purchaser.

4.5 Conversion and Exercise Procedures. The form of Notice of Conversion included in the Debentures sets forth the totality of the
procedures required of the Purchaser in order to convert the Debentures. No additional legal opinion, other information or instructions shall
be required of the Purchaser to convert their Debentures. The Company shall honor conversions of the Debentures and shall deliver
Underlying Shares in accordance with the terms, conditions and time periods set forth in the Transaction Documents.
4.6 Securities Laws Disclosure; Publicity. The Company shall, by 5:30 p.m. (New York City time) on the fourth Trading Day
following the date hereof, disclose the material terms of the transactions contemplated hereby by either: (i) issuing a Current Report on
Form 8-K regarding the transaction; or (b) issuing its Annual Report on Form 10-K with the transaction disclosed. In either case, the
Transaction Documents will be included as exhibits. The Company and the Purchaser shall consult with each other in issuing any other
press releases with respect to the transactions contemplated hereby, and neither the Company nor the Purchaser shall issue any such press
release nor otherwise make any such public statement (other than in the Company’s SEC Reports after the Closing Date or exhibits filed
therewith) without the prior consent of the Company, with respect to any press release of the Purchaser, or without the prior consent of the
Purchaser, with respect to any press release of the Company, which consent shall not unreasonably be withheld or delayed, except if such
disclosure is required by law, in which case the disclosing party shall promptly provide the other party with prior notice of such public
statement or communication. Notwithstanding the foregoing, other than in connection with the Company’s SEC Reports or disclosures to
any regulatory agency or Trading Market that the Company determines are necessary or appropriate, the Company shall not publicly
disclose the name of the Purchaser, or include the name of the Purchaser, in any press release or similar public statement, without the prior
written consent of the Purchaser.
4.7 Shareholder Rights Plan. No claim will be made or enforced by the Company or, with the consent of the Company, any other
Person, that the Purchaser is an “Acquiring Person” under any control share acquisition, business combination, poison pill (including any
distribution under a rights agreement) or similar anti-takeover plan or arrangement in effect, or that the Purchaser could be deemed to
trigger the provisions of any such plan or arrangement, by virtue of receiving Securities under the Transaction Documents or any other
agreement between the Company and the Purchaser.
4.8 Non-Public Information. Except with respect to the material terms and conditions of the transactions contemplated by the
Transaction Documents, the Company covenants and agrees that after the Closing Date neither it, nor any other Person acting on its behalf,
will provide the Purchaser or its agents or counsel with any information that the Company believes constitutes material non-public
information, unless prior thereto the Purchaser shall have executed a written agreement regarding the confidentiality and use of such
information. The Company understands and confirms that the Purchaser shall be relying on the foregoing covenant in effecting transactions
in securities of the Company. Purchaser acknowledges that it is aware that the United States securities laws prohibit any person who has
material non-public information about a company from purchasing or selling securities of such company, or from communicating such
information to any other person under circumstances in which it is reasonably foreseeable that such person is likely to purchase or sell such
securities, and Purchaser agrees not to engage in any unlawful trading in securities of the Company or unlawful misuse or misappropriation
of any such information. Purchaser agrees to maintain the confidentiality of and not disclose or use (except for purposes relating to the
transactions contemplated by this Agreement) any confidential, proprietary or non-public information disclosed by the Company to
Purchaser.

4.9 Use of Proceeds. Of the net proceeds from the sale of the Debentures, the Company shall use at least $15,000 in connection
with the payment of its auditors and preparing its annual report on form 10-K and shall use the rest of net proceeds from the sale of the
Securities hereunder for working capital purposes. The Company shall not use any of the net proceeds from the sale of the Debentures for:
(a) the satisfaction of any portion of the Company’s debt (other than payment of trade payables in the ordinary course of the Company’s
business and prior practices), (b) the redemption of any Common Stock or Common Stock Equivalents or (c) the settlement of any
litigation.
4.10 Indemnification of Purchaser. Subject to the provisions of this Section 4.10, the Company will indemnify and hold the
Purchaser and its directors, officers, shareholders, members, partners, employees and agents (and any other Persons with a functionally
equivalent role of a Person holding such titles notwithstanding a lack of such title or any other title), each Person who controls the
Purchaser (within the meaning of Section 15 of the Securities Act and Section 20 of the Exchange Act), and the directors, officers,
shareholders, agents, members, partners or employees (and any other Persons with a functionally equivalent role of a Person holding such
titles notwithstanding a lack of such title or any other title) of such controlling person (each, a “Purchaser Party”) harmless from any and all
losses, liabilities, obligations, claims, contingencies, damages, costs and expenses, including all judgments, amounts paid in settlements,
court costs and reasonable attorneys’ fees and costs of investigation that any such Purchaser Party may suffer or incur as a result of or
relating to any action, suit, claim or proceeding brought by a third party against such Purchaser Party arising out of or relating to (a) any
breach of any of the representations, warranties, covenants or agreements made by the Company in this Agreement or in the other
Transaction Documents or (b) any action instituted against a Purchaser in any capacity, or any of them or their respective Affiliates, by any
stockholder of the Company who is not an Affiliate of the Purchaser, with respect to any of the transactions contemplated by the
Transaction Documents (unless such action is based upon a breach of such Purchaser’s representations, warranties or covenants under the
Transaction Documents or any agreements or understandings the Purchaser may have with any such stockholder or any violations by the
Purchaser of state or federal securities laws or any conduct by the Purchaser which constitutes fraud, gross negligence, willful misconduct
or malfeasance). If any action shall be brought against the Purchaser Party in respect of which indemnity may be sought pursuant to this
Agreement, such Purchaser Party shall promptly notify the Company in writing, and the Company shall have the right to assume the
defense thereof with counsel of its own choosing reasonably acceptable to the Purchaser Party. Any Purchaser Party shall have the right to
employ separate counsel in any such action and participate in the defense thereof, but the fees and expenses of such counsel shall be at the
expense of such Purchaser Party except to the extent that (i) the employment thereof has been specifically authorized by the Company in
writing, (ii) the Company has failed after a reasonable period of time to assume such defense and to employ counsel or (iii) in such action
there is, in the reasonable opinion of such separate counsel, a material conflict on any material issue between the position of the Company
and the position of such Purchaser Party, in which case the Company shall be responsible for the reasonable fees and expenses of no more
than one such separate counsel. The Company will not be liable to any Purchaser Party under this Agreement (y) for any settlement by a
Purchaser Party effected without the Company’s prior written consent, which shall not be unreasonably withheld or delayed; or (z) to the
extent, but only to the extent that a loss, claim, damage or liability is attributable to any Purchaser Party’s breach of any of the
representations, warranties, covenants or agreements made by such Purchaser Party in this Agreement or in the other Transaction
Documents.

4.11 Reservation and Listing of Securities.
(a) The Company shall maintain a reserve from its duly authorized shares of Common Stock for issuance pursuant to the
Transaction Documents in such amount as may then be required to fulfill its obligations in full under the Transaction Documents.
(b) If, on any date, the number of authorized but unissued (and otherwise unreserved) shares of Common Stock is less
than the Required Minimum on such date, then the Board of Directors shall use commercially reasonable efforts to amend the Company’s
certificate or articles of incorporation to increase the number of authorized but unissued shares of Common Stock to at least the Required
Minimum at such time, as soon as possible and in any event not later than the 60th calendar day after such date.
(c) The Company shall, if applicable: (i) in the time and manner required by the principal Trading Market, prepare and
file with such Trading Market an additional shares listing application covering a number of shares of Common Stock at least equal to the
Required Minimum on the date of such application, (ii) take all steps necessary to cause such shares of Common Stock to be approved for
listing on such Trading Market as soon as possible thereafter, (iii) provide to the Purchaser evidence of such listing and (iv) maintain the
listing of such Common Stock on any date at least equal to the Required Minimum on such date on such Trading Market or another
Trading Market.
4.12 Form D; Blue Sky Filings. The Company agrees to timely file a Form D with respect to the Securities as required under
Regulation D and to provide a copy thereof, promptly upon request of the Purchaser. The Company shall take such action as the Company
shall reasonably determine is necessary in order to obtain an exemption for, or to qualify the Securities for, sale to the Purchaser at the
Closing under applicable securities or “Blue Sky” laws of the states of the United States, and shall provide evidence of such actions
promptly upon request of the Purchaser.
4.13 Corporate Existence. So long as any of the Debentures remain outstanding, the Company shall not directly or indirectly
consummate any merger, reorganization, restructuring, consolidation, sale of all or substantially all of the Company’s assets or any similar
transaction or related transactions (each such transaction, an “Organizational Change”) unless, prior to the consummation an Organizational
Change, the Company obtains the written consent of the Purchaser, which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld. In any such case,
the Company will make appropriate provision with respect to such holders’ rights and interests to insure that the provisions of this Section
4.13 will thereafter be applicable to the Debentures.
4.14 Transfer Agent. The Company covenants and agrees that it will at all times while the Debentures remains outstanding
maintain a duly qualified independent transfer agent.
4.15 Reserved.
4.16 No Short Selling. The Purchaser has and shall not, directly or indirectly, his, her or itself, through related parties, affiliates or
otherwise, (i) sell “short” or “short against the box” (as those terms are generally understood) any equity security of the Company or (ii)
otherwise engage in any transaction that involves hedging of the Purchaser’s position in any equity security of the Company, until the later
of (i) the date the Debentures owned by the Purchaser is no longer owned by the Purchaser, or (ii) the Maturity Date (as such term is
defined in the Debentures) and the Conversion Date.

4.17 Subsequent Rights Offerings. If at any time the Company grants, issues or sells any Common Stock, Common Stock
Equivalents or rights to purchase stock, warrants, securities or other property pro rata to the record holders of any class of shares of
Common Stock (the “Purchase Rights”), then the Holder will be entitled to acquire, upon the terms applicable to such Purchase Rights, the
aggregate Purchase Rights which the Holder could have acquired if the Holder had held the number of shares of Common Stock acquirable
upon complete conversion of this Note (without regard to any limitations on conversion hereof, including without limitation, the Beneficial
Ownership Limitation) immediately before the date on which a record is taken for the grant, issuance or sale of such Purchase Rights, or, if
no such record is taken, the date as of which the record holders of shares of Common Stock are to be determined for the grant, issue or sale
of such Purchase Rights (provided, however, to the extent that the Holder’s right to participate in any such Purchase Right would result in
the Holder exceeding the Beneficial Ownership Limitation, then the Holder shall not be entitled to participate in such Purchase Right to
such extent (or in the beneficial ownership of any shares of Common Stock as a result of such Distribution to such extent).
4.18 Piggyback Registration. If at any time after the Closing Date, other than in connection with the proposed underwritten public
offering contemplated by that certain Registration Statement on Form S-1 filed with the Commission on December 22, 2016, the Company
proposes to register (including for this purpose a registration effected by the Company for stockholders other than the Holders) any of its
stock or other securities under the Securities Act in connection with the public offering of such securities (other than, pursuant to an
underwritten public offering where no other shares of selling stockholders are included for registration thereon, a registration statement on
Form S-8, Form S-4 and /or registration relating solely to the sale of securities to participants in a Company stock plan, a registration
relating to a corporate reorganization or other transaction under Rule 145 of the Securities Act, a registration on any form that does not
include substantially the same information as would be required to be included in a registration statement covering the sale of the Common
Stock issued pursuant to this Agreement and the Underlying Shares (the “Registrable Securities”), the Company shall, at such time,
promptly give Purchaser written notice of such registration. Upon the written request of Purchaser given within twenty (20) days after
mailing of such notice by the Company, the Company shall use commercially reasonable efforts to cause to be registered under the
Securities Act all of the Registrable Securities that Purchaser has requested to be registered, provided, however, if the managing underwriter
of an underwritten offering shall advise the Company that the inclusion of Registrable Securities requested to be included in the registration
statement would cause an adverse effect on the success of any such offering, based on market conditions or otherwise (an “Adverse
Effect”), then the Company shall be required to use commercially reasonable efforts to include in such registration statement, to the extent
of the amount of securities that the managing underwriters advise may be sold without causing such Adverse Effect, (i) first securities
proposed by the Company to be sold for its own account, (ii) second Registrable Securities and (iii) securities of other selling security
holders requested to be included in such registration. The Company shall pay all Registration Expenses (as defined below) incurred in
connection with a registration of Registrable Securities, whether or not such registration statement shall become effective; provided that
each Investor shall pay all underwriting discounts, commissions and transfer taxes, and their own counsel and accounting fees, if any,
relating to the sale or disposition of such Investor’s Registrable Securities pursuant to such registration statement. As used herein,
“Registration Expenses” means any and all reasonable and customary expenses incident to performance of or compliance with the
registration rights set forth herein, including, without limitation, (i) all SEC and stock exchange or Financial Industry Regulatory Authority
registration and filing fees, (ii) all fees and expenses of complying with state securities or blue sky laws (including reasonable fees and
disbursements of counsel for the underwriters in connection with blue sky qualifications of the Registrable Securities but no other expenses
of or disbursements by the underwriters or their counsel), (iii) all printing, messenger and delivery expenses, and (iv) the reasonable fees
and disbursements of counsel for the Company and the Company’s independent public accountants.

ARTICLE V.
MISCELLANEOUS
5.1 Termination. This Agreement may be terminated by the Purchaser, as to the Purchaser’s obligations hereunder only and
without any effect whatsoever on the obligations between the Company and the Purchaser, by written notice to the other parties, if the
Closing has not been consummated on or before March 15, 2017; provided, however, that such termination will not affect the right of any
party to sue for any breach by the other party (or parties). For the avoidance of doubt, even absent termination by the Purchaser, the
Company needs to, no earlier than 30 days from the date hereof and no later than 45 days from the date hereof and subject to there not
being a Material Adverse Effect and the Company not being in default or breach of this Agreement or the Debenture, specifically request
the Subsequent Financing payment be made by the Purchaser. The Company’s representations and warranties shall survive the termination
of this Agreement.
5.2 Fees and Expenses. Except as expressly set forth in the Transaction Documents to the contrary, each party shall pay the fees
and expenses of its advisers, counsel, accountants and other experts, if any, and all other expenses incurred by such party incident to the
negotiation, preparation, execution, delivery and performance of this Agreement. The Company shall pay all transfer agent fees, stamp
taxes and other taxes and duties levied in connection with the delivery of any Securities to the Purchaser. The Company agrees to pay
counsel for the Purchaser $10,000 in fees, of which $5,000 has been paid. The Purchaser may withhold $5,000 of the purchase price of the
first Debenture in order to pay the fees due its counsel.
5 . 3 Entire Agreement. The Transaction Documents, together with the exhibits and schedules thereto, contain the entire
understanding of the parties with respect to the subject matter hereof and supersede all prior agreements and understandings, oral or
written, with respect to such matters, which the parties acknowledge have been merged into such documents, exhibits and schedules.
5.4 Notices. Any and all notices or other communications or deliveries required or permitted to be provided hereunder shall be in
writing and shall be deemed given and effective on the earliest of: (a) one Trading Day after the date of transmission, if such notice or
communication is delivered via, email to the email address set forth on the signature pages attached hereto, set forth on the signature pages
attached hereto prior to 5:30 p.m. (New York City time) on a Trading Day, with written confirmation of successful transmission, (b) the
next Trading Day after the date of transmission, if such notice or communication is delivered via, email, to the email address set forth on
the signature pages attached hereto on a day that is not a Trading Day or later than 5:30 p.m. (New York City time) on any Trading Day, (c)
the second Trading Day following the date of mailing, if sent by U.S. nationally recognized overnight courier service or (d) upon actual
receipt by the party to whom such notice is required to be given. The address for such notices and communications shall be as set forth on
the signature pages attached hereto.
5.5 Amendments; Waivers. No provision of this Agreement may be waived, modified, supplemented or amended except in a
written instrument signed, in the case of an amendment, by the Company and the Purchaser or, in the case of a waiver, by the party against
whom enforcement of any such waived provision is sought. No waiver of any default with respect to any provision, condition or
requirement of this Agreement shall be deemed to be a continuing waiver in the future or a waiver of any subsequent default or a waiver of
any other provision, condition or requirement hereof, nor shall any delay or omission of any party to exercise any right hereunder in any
manner impair the exercise of any such right.
5.6 Headings. The headings herein are for convenience only, do not constitute a part of this Agreement and shall not be deemed to
limit or affect any of the provisions hereof.

5.7 Successors and Assigns. This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties and their successors and
permitted assigns. The Company may not assign this Agreement or any rights or obligations hereunder without the prior written consent of
the Purchaser (other than by merger). The Purchaser may assign any or all of its rights under this Agreement to any Person to whom the
Purchaser assigns or transfers any Securities, provided that such transfer complies with all applicable federal and state securities laws and
that such transferee agrees in writing with the Company to be bound, with respect to the transferred Securities, by the provisions of the
Transaction Documents that apply to the Purchaser.
5.8 No Third-Party Beneficiaries. This Agreement is intended for the benefit of the parties hereto and their respective successors
and permitted assigns and is not for the benefit of, nor may any provision hereof be enforced by, any other Person, except as otherwise set
forth in Section 4.10.
5 . 9 Governing Law. All questions concerning the construction, validity, enforcement and interpretation of the Transaction
Documents shall be governed by and construed and enforced in accordance with the internal laws of the State of New York, without regard
to the principles of conflicts of law thereof. Each party agrees that all legal proceedings concerning the interpretations, enforcement and
defense of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement and any other Transaction Documents (whether brought against a party hereto
or its respective affiliates, directors, officers, shareholders, employees or agents) shall be commenced exclusively in the state and federal
courts sitting in the City of New York. Each party hereby irrevocably submits to the exclusive jurisdiction of the state and federal courts
sitting in the City of New York, borough of Manhattan for the adjudication of any dispute hereunder or in connection herewith or with any
transaction contemplated hereby or discussed herein (including with respect to the enforcement of any of the Transaction Documents), and
hereby irrevocably waives, and agrees not to assert in any suit, action or proceeding, any claim that it is not personally subject to the
jurisdiction of any such court, that such suit, action or proceeding is improper or is an inconvenient venue for such proceeding. Each party
hereby irrevocably waives personal service of process and consents to process being served in any such suit, action or proceeding by
mailing a copy thereof via registered or certified mail or overnight delivery (with evidence of delivery) to such party at the address in effect
for notices to it under this Agreement and agrees that such service shall constitute good and sufficient service of process and notice thereof.
Nothing contained herein shall be deemed to limit in any way any right to serve process in any other manner permitted by law. If either
party shall commence an action or proceeding to enforce any provisions of the Transaction Documents, then the prevailing party in such
action or proceeding shall be reimbursed by the other party for its reasonable attorneys’ fees and other costs and expenses incurred with the
investigation, preparation and prosecution of such action or proceeding.
5.10 Survival. The representations and warranties shall survive the Closing and the delivery of the Debentures until, with respect
to the Purchaser, the Debentures held by the Purchaser has been paid in full or converted into Underlying Shares, at which time they shall
expire such respect to Purchaser and shall no longer be of any force or effect.
5.11 Execution. This Agreement may be executed in two or more counterparts, all of which when taken together shall be
considered one and the same agreement and shall become effective when counterparts have been signed by each party and delivered to the
other party, it being understood that both parties need not sign the same counterpart. In the event that any signature is delivered by
facsimile transmission or by e-mail delivery of a “.pdf” format data file, such signature shall create a valid and binding obligation of the
party executing (or on whose behalf such signature is executed) with the same force and effect as if such facsimile or “.pdf” signature page
were an original thereof.

5.12 Severability. If any term, provision, covenant or restriction of this Agreement is held by a court of competent jurisdiction to
be invalid, illegal, void or unenforceable, the remainder of the terms, provisions, covenants and restrictions set forth herein shall remain in
full force and effect and shall in no way be affected, impaired or invalidated, and the parties hereto shall use their commercially reasonable
efforts to find and employ an alternative means to achieve the same or substantially the same result as that contemplated by such term,
provision, covenant or restriction. It is hereby stipulated and declared to be the intention of the parties that they would have executed the
remaining terms, provisions, covenants and restrictions without including any of such that may be hereafter declared invalid, illegal, void or
unenforceable.
5.13 Rescission and Withdrawal Right. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in (and without limiting any similar
provisions of) any of the other Transaction Documents, whenever the Purchaser exercises a right, election, demand or option under a
Transaction Document and the Company does not timely perform its related obligations within the periods therein provided, then the
Purchaser may rescind or withdraw, in its sole discretion from time to time upon written notice to the Company, any relevant notice,
demand or election in whole or in part without prejudice to its future actions and rights; provided, however, that in the case of a rescission
of a conversion of a Debentures, the Purchaser shall be required to return any shares of Common Stock subject to any such rescinded
conversion or exercise notice.
5.14 Replacement of Securities. If any certificate or instrument evidencing any Securities is mutilated, lost, stolen or destroyed, the
Company shall issue or cause to be issued in exchange and substitution for and upon cancellation thereof (in the case of mutilation), or in
lieu of and substitution therefor, a new certificate or instrument, but only upon receipt of evidence reasonably satisfactory to the Company
of such loss, theft or destruction. The applicant for a new certificate or instrument under such circumstances shall also pay any reasonable
third-party costs (including customary indemnity) associated with the issuance of such replacement Securities.
5.15 Remedies. In addition to being entitled to exercise all rights provided herein or granted by law, including recovery of
damages, each of the Purchaser and the Company will be entitled to specific performance under the Transaction Documents. The parties
agree that monetary damages may not be adequate compensation for any loss incurred by reason of any breach of obligations contained in
the Transaction Documents and hereby agrees to waive and not to assert in any action for specific performance of any such obligation the
defense that a remedy at law would be adequate.
5.16 Payment Set Aside. To the extent that the Company makes a payment or payments to the Purchaser pursuant to any
Transaction Document or the Purchaser enforces or exercises its rights thereunder, and such payment or payments or the proceeds of such
enforcement or exercise or any part thereof are subsequently invalidated, declared to be fraudulent or preferential, set aside, recovered from,
disgorged by or are required to be refunded, repaid or otherwise restored to the Company, a trustee, receiver or any other person under any
law (including, without limitation, any bankruptcy law, state or federal law, common law or equitable cause of action), then to the extent of
any such restoration the obligation or part thereof originally intended to be satisfied shall be revived and continued in full force and effect
as if such payment had not been made or such enforcement or setoff had not occurred.

5.17 Usury. To the extent it may lawfully do so, the Company hereby agrees not to insist upon or plead or in any manner
whatsoever claim, and will resist any and all efforts to be compelled to take the benefit or advantage of, usury laws wherever enacted, now
or at any time hereafter in force, in connection with any claim, action or proceeding that may be brought by the Purchaser in order to
enforce any right or remedy under any Transaction Document. Notwithstanding any provision to the contrary contained in any Transaction
Document, it is expressly agreed and provided that the total liability of the Company under the Transaction Documents for payments in the
nature of interest shall not exceed the maximum lawful rate authorized under applicable law (the “Maximum Rate”), and, without limiting
the foregoing, in no event shall any rate of interest or default interest, or both of them, when aggregated with any other sums in the nature
of interest that the Company may be obligated to pay under the Transaction Documents exceed such Maximum Rate. It is agreed that if the
maximum contract rate of interest allowed by law and applicable to the Transaction Documents is increased or decreased by statute or any
official governmental action subsequent to the date hereof, the new maximum contract rate of interest allowed by law will be the Maximum
Rate applicable to the Transaction Documents from the effective date forward, unless such application is precluded by applicable law. If
under any circumstances whatsoever, interest in excess of the Maximum Rate is paid by the Company to the Purchaser with respect to
indebtedness evidenced by the Transaction Documents, such excess shall be applied by the Purchaser to the unpaid principal balance of
any such indebtedness or be refunded to the Company, the manner of handling such excess to be at the Purchaser’s election.
5.18 Liquidated Damages. The Company’s obligations to pay any partial liquidated damages or other amounts owing under the
Transaction Documents is a continuing obligation of the Company and shall not terminate until all unpaid partial liquidated damages and
other amounts have been paid notwithstanding the fact that the instrument or security pursuant to which such partial liquidated damages or
other amounts are due and payable shall have been canceled.
5.19 Saturdays, Sundays, Holidays, etc. If the last or appointed day for the taking of any action or the expiration of any right
required or granted herein shall not be a Business Day, then such action may be taken or such right may be exercised on the next
succeeding Business Day.
5.20 Construction. The parties agree that each of them and/or their respective counsel has reviewed and had an opportunity to
revise the Transaction Documents and, therefore, the normal rule of construction to the effect that any ambiguities are to be resolved
against the drafting party shall not be employed in the interpretation of the Transaction Documents or any amendments hereto.
5.21 WAIVER OF JURY TRIAL . IN ANY ACTION, SUIT, OR PROCEEDING IN ANY JURISDICTION BROUGHT
BY ANY PARTY AGAINST ANY OTHER PARTY, THE PARTIES EACH KNOWINGLY AND INTENTIONALLY, TO THE
GREATEST EXTENT PERMITTED BY APPLICABLE LAW, HEREBY ABSOLUTELY, UNCONDITIONALLY,
IRREVOCABLY AND EXPRESSLY WAIVES FOREVER TRIAL BY JURY.
(Signature Pages Follow)

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Securities Purchase Agreement to be duly executed by their
respective authorized signatories as of the date first indicated above.
PRESSURE BIOSCIENCES, INC.
By:
Name: Richard T. Schumacher
Title: President and CEO
Pressure BioSciences, Inc.
14 Norfolk Ave
South Easton, MA 02375
Attn: CEO
Email address for Notice:
With a copy to (which shall not constitute notice):
[REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK
SIGNATURE PAGE FOR PURCHASER FOLLOWS]

[PURCHASER SIGNATURE PAGES TO PRESSURE BIOSCIENCES INC. SECURITIES PURCHASE AGREEMENT]
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned have caused this Securities Purchase Agreement to be duly executed by their
respective authorized signatories as of the date first indicated above.
Name of Purchaser: ________________________________________________________
Signature of Authorized Signatory of Purchaser: __________________________________
Name of Authorized Signatory: ____________________________________________________
Title of Authorized Signatory: _____________________________________________________
Email Address of Authorized Signatory: _____________________________________________
Facsimile Number of Authorized Signatory: __________________________________________
Address for Notice of Purchaser:
Address for Delivery of Securities for Purchaser (if not same as address for notice):
EIN Number: [PROVIDE THIS UNDER SEPARATE COVER]

Annex A
CLOSING STATEMENT
Pursuant to the attached Securities Purchase Agreement, dated as of the date hereto, the purchaser shall purchase an aggregate of $____
Original Discount Debentures from Pressure BioSciences, Inc., a Massachusetts corporation (the “Company”) for a purchase price of an
aggregate of ________. All funds will be disbursed in accordance with this Closing Statement.
First Closing
Disbursement Date:
I. PURCHASE PRICE
Gross Proceeds to be Received
II. DISBURSEMENTS
Total Amount Disbursed:
WIRE INSTRUCTIONS:
Second Closing
Disbursement Date:
I. PURCHASE PRICE
Gross Proceeds to be Received
II. DISBURSEMENTS
Total Amount Disbursed:
(Signature Pages Follow)

PRESSURE BIOSCIENCES, INC.
By:
Name: Richard T. Schumacher
Title: President and CEO

Exhibit A
Form of Convertible Debenture

Schedule 3.1(a)
Subsidiaries
PBI BioSeq, Inc. (U.S.A.) – 100%
Pressure BioSciences Europe (Poland) – 49%

Schedules 3.1(g), 3.1(i), and 3.1(gg)
Capitalization, Material Changes, and Solvency
(1) February 15, 2017 – Six-month loan for $110,000 from high net worth investor with no interest rate. Non-Convertible with an OID of
10%.
(2) February 15, 2017 – Six-month loan for $110,000 from high net worth investor with no interest rate. Non-Convertible with an OID of
10%.
(3) March 2, 2017 – Six-month merchant loan for $75,000 with 29% interest rate. Non-convertible with no OID.
Use of proceeds – repaid a $100,000 loan and repaid a $200,000 loan.

EXHIBIT 31.1
CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002
I, Richard T. Schumacher, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q of Pressure BioSciences, Inc.;
2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period
covered by this report;
3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;
4. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rule 13a15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:
a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiary, is made known to us by
others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;
b) Designed such internal controls over financial reporting, or caused such internal controls over financial reporting to be designed under
our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements
for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;
c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and
d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most
recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely
to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and
5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent
functions):
a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and
b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal
control over financial reporting.
Dated: May 15, 2017
/s/ Richard T. Schumacher
Richard T. Schumacher
President & Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer)

EXHIBIT 31.2
CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002
I, Joseph L. Damasio, Jr., certify that:
1. I have reviewed this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q of Pressure BioSciences, Inc.;
2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period
covered by this report;
3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;
4. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rule 13a15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:
a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiary, is made known to us by
others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;
b) Designed such internal controls over financial reporting, or caused such internal controls over financial reporting to be designed under
our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements
for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;
c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and
d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most
recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely
to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and
5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent
functions):
a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and
b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal
control over financial reporting.
Dated: May 15, 2017
/s/ Joseph L. Damasio, Jr.
Joseph L. Damasio, Jr.
Vice President of Finance & Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial Officer)

EXHIBIT 32.1
Certification
Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
(Subsections (a) and (b) of Section 1350, Chapter 63 of Title 18, United States Code)
In connection with the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q of Pressure BioSciences, Inc., a Massachusetts corporation (the “Company”) for the
period ended March 31, 2017 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report”), I, Richard T.
Schumacher, President and Chief Executive Officer of the Company, do hereby certify, pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act
of 2002 (subsections (a) and (b) of Section 1350, Chapter 63 of Title 18, United States Code) that:
(1) The Report of the Company fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as
amended; and
(2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the
Company.
Date: May 15, 2017

By: /s/ Richard T. Schumacher
Richard T. Schumacher
President & Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer)

A signed original of this written statement required by Section 906 has been provided to Pressure BioSciences, Inc. and will be retained by
Pressure BioSciences, Inc. and furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission or its staff upon request.

EXHIBIT 32.2
Certification
Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
(Subsections (a) and (b) of Section 1350, Chapter 63 of Title 18, United States Code)
In connection with the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q of Pressure BioSciences, Inc., a Massachusetts corporation (the “Company”) for the
period ended March 31, 2017 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report”), I, Joseph L.
Damasio, Jr., Principal Financial Officer of the Company, do hereby certify, pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
(subsections (a) and (b) of Section 1350, Chapter 63 of Title 18, United States Code) that:
(1) The Report of the Company fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as
amended; and
(2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the
Company.
Date: May 15, 2017

By: /s/ Joseph L. Damasio, Jr.
Joseph L. Damasio, Jr.
Vice President & Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial Officer)

A signed original of this written statement required by Section 906 has been provided to Pressure BioSciences, Inc. and will be retained by
Pressure BioSciences, Inc. and furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission or its staff upon request.

